

Starting with Convertigo Web Clipper

Quick Guide



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1 Getting Familiar with Convertigo Web Clipper

CWC Purpose	1-1
CWC Concepts and Objects	1-2
General Concept	1-2
CWC Objects	1-3
Definitions	1-4
Connector	1-4
Screen Class	1-5
Transaction	1-8
CWC Studio	1-9
General Presentation	1-10
View Description	1-11
Projects View	1-11
Properties View	1-13
Connector View	1-17

2

My First Convertigo Web Clipper Project

Web Clipping Project	2-1
Project Description	2-1
Opening the Sample Project from the Studio	2-4
Setting Up the Project	2-6



Creating a Project and Setting Connector Parameters	2-6
Defining Screen Classes	2-10
Defined Screen Classes	2-10
Definition of the GoogleSearchPage Screen Class	2-12
Definition of the GoogleResultsPage Screen Class	2-20
Case of a Country-Specific Google Search Page - Definition of the GoogleSearchPageFR Screen Class	2-25
Creating Extraction Rules	2-28
Web Clipper Extraction Rules associated with the GoogleSearchPag Screen Class	ge 2-29
Web Clipper Extraction Rules associated with the GoogleResultsPa Screen Class	age 2-37
Defining a Transaction	2-43
Definition of a Standard Connection Transaction	2-43
Definition of a Country-Specific Connection Transaction	2-46
Executing a Transaction	2-57

3 Presenting Data with Convertigo Web Clipper

Presenting Data	3-1
The DoNothing Style Sheet	. 3-1
Associating the DoNothing Style Sheet with Transactions	. 3-2
Editing an XSL Style Sheet	3-12



Figure 1 - 1:	CWC "clips" parts of target applications to be integrated into business portals 1-1
Figure 1 - 2:	Web clipping preserves functionalities1-2
Figure 1 - 3:	CWC object1-4
Figure 1 - 4:	Connectors folder1-5
Figure 1 - 5:	Default CWC Screen classes1-5
Figure 1 - 6:	Objects inherited from the Default screen class1-6
Figure 1 - 7:	Screen classes and Inherited screen classes folders1-6
Figure 1 - 8:	Criterion and inherited criterion1-7
Figure 1 - 9:	GenericWebPage screen class - XPath criterion1-7
Figure 1 - 10:	GenericWebPage screen class - WebClipper extraction rule 1-8
Figure 1 - 11:	Transactions folder 1-8
Figure 1 - 12:	"On entry" and "on exit" screen class handlers1-9
Figure 1 - 13:	List of statements1-9
Figure 1 - 14:	CWC Studio1-10
Figure 1 - 15:	Formatting of unsaved, inherited and disabled objects in the Projects View 1-13
Figure 1 - 16:	Properties View1-14
Figure 1 - 17:	Text property field edition1-14
Figure 1 - 18:	Javascript expression field edition1-15
Figure 1 - 19:	Text property edition via edition window1-15
Figure 1 - 20:	Javascript expression window1-15
Figure 1 - 21:	Edition window1-16



LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1 - 22:	Configuration window1-16
Figure 1 - 23:	Text property edition via drop-down menu1-16
Figure 1 - 24:	Selecting a value in the drop-down menu1-17
Figure 1 - 25:	Connector View (Design tab selected)1-18
Figure 1 - 26:	Connector View (Output tab selected)1-19
Figure 1 - 27:	DOM Tree 1-20
Figure 1 - 28:	HTML element selected in the Web Browser1-21
Figure 1 - 29:	XPath Evaluator1-21
Figure 2 - 1:	Connection to Google Web site2-2
Figure 2 - 2:	Clipping the Google logo2-2
Figure 2 - 3:	Clipping the Google search form (field and associated buttons and links)2-3
Figure 2 - 4:	Cliplet generated based on Google logo and serach field clipping2-3
Figure 2 - 5:	Clipping results and the Google navigation bar2-4
Figure 2 - 6:	Clipped results and navigation bar2-4
Figure 2 - 7:	Launching the New Project wizard2-5
Figure 2 - 8:	Selecting the CWC sample project2-5
Figure 2 - 9:	Sample project in Projects View2-5
Figure 2 - 10:	New Project Wizard2-6
Figure 2 - 11:	Selecting a project type2-7
Figure 2 - 12:	Entering a project name2-7
Figure 2 - 13:	Entering a connector name2-8
Figure 2 - 14:	Setting HTTP or HTML connector parameters2-8
Figure 2 - 15:	New project summary window2-9
Figure 2 - 16:	sample_doc_CWC project appearing in the Projects View2-9
Figure 2 - 17:	DOM Tree and Web Browser2-10
Figure 2 - 18:	Google logo (GoogleSearchPage screen class)2-11
Figure 2 - 19:	Plain "Web" link (GoogleSearchPage and GoogleResultsPage screen classes)
Figure 2 - 20:	Google result (GoogleResultsPage screen class)2-12
Figure 2 - 21:	Selection of the parent screen class2-13

Figure 2 - 22:	Selection of a detection criterion for the googleSearchPage screen class2-13
Figure 2 - 23:	Attribute nodes of the HTML element selected as detection criterion for the GoogleSearchPage screen class2-14
Figure 2 - 24:	Selection of nodes and generation of XPath2-14
Figure 2 - 25:	XPath expression of the selected node (corresponding to Google logo)2-15
Figure 2 - 26:	New Screen Class wizard2-15
Figure 2 - 27:	Giving a name to the new screen class2-15
Figure 2 - 28:	GoogleSearchPage screen class and defined criterion2-16
Figure 2 - 29:	Second detection criterion of the GoogleSearchPage screen class
Figure 2 - 30:	Expanding an element to find relevant attribute nodes in the DOM Tree2-17
Figure 2 - 31:	Generating XPath from class and text content2-18
Figure 2 - 32:	XPath expression of second selected criterion of the GoogleSearchPage screen class
Figure 2 - 33:	New Criteria wizard2-19
Figure 2 - 34:	New criterion in the Criteria folder of the screen class2-19
Figure 2 - 35:	Highlighted screen class after Go to current screen class object command2-20
Figure 2 - 36:	Selection of a detection criterion for the GoogleResultsPage screen class2-21
Figure 2 - 37:	Searching for a better detection criterion2-22
Figure 2 - 38:	Generation of XPath for the GoogleResultsPage screen class2-22
Figure 2 - 39:	GoogleResultsPage screen class and defined criterion2-23
Figure 2 - 40:	Copy criterion2-24
Figure 2 - 41:	Paste criterion2-24
Figure 2 - 42:	Pasted criterion in Criteria folder2-24
Figure 2 - 43:	Example of country-specific non-anglophone Google search page (France) 2-25
Figure 2 - 44:	Example of country-specific anglophone Google search page (UK)2-25
Figure 2 - 45:	Selection of a detection criterion for the country-specific screen class2-26
Figure 2 - 46:	Expanding an element to find relevant attributes in the DOM Tree for the country- specific screen class
Figure 2 - 47:	XPath expression of country-specific redirecting link2-27
Figure 2 - 48:	GoogleSearchPageFR screen class in Projects View2-28
Figure 2 - 49:	Selection of Google search field in Web Browser



LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 2 - 50:	Going up the DOM Tree to find an appropriate node for the Google search form 2-30
Figure 2 - 51:	Expanding an element to find relevant attributes in the DOM Tree2-31
Figure 2 - 52:	Generating XPath expression corresponding to Google search form2-31
Figure 2 - 53:	XPath expression on which the WebClipForm extraction rule will be based2-31
Figure 2 - 54:	New Extraction Rule Wizard2-32
Figure 2 - 55:	Giving a name to the new extraction rule2-32
Figure 2 - 56:	WebClipForm extraction rule in Extraction rules folders2-33
Figure 2 - 57:	Extraction rule properties2-33
Figure 2 - 58:	Inherited and new extraction rules2-34
Figure 2 - 59:	Selection of the Google logo to be clipped2-34
Figure 2 - 60:	Attribute nodes of the HTML element to be clipped2-35
Figure 2 - 61:	Generating XPath expression before creating the WebClipImage extraction rule 2-35
Figure 2 - 62:	WebClipImage extraction rule in Extraction rules folders2-36
Figure 2 - 63:	Increasing the WebClipImage priority2-37
Figure 2 - 64:	Selection of an XPath for Google result items2-38
Figure 2 - 65:	Going up the DOM Tree to select an appropriate node2-38
Figure 2 - 66:	Generating XPath expression before creating the WebClipResults extraction rule 2-39
Figure 2 - 67:	WebClipResults extraction rule in Extraction rules folder2-40
Figure 2 - 68:	Selection of an XPath for the Google navigation bar2-40
Figure 2 - 69:	Table node corresponding to the whole Google navigation bar2-41
Figure 2 - 70:	Expanding an element to find relevant attributes in the DOM Tree2-41
Figure 2 - 71:	Generating XPath corresponding to navigation bar2-41
Figure 2 - 72:	WebClipNavigationBar extraction rule in Extraction rules folder2-42
Figure 2 - 73:	Creating a new transaction2-44
Figure 2 - 74:	New Transaction wizard2-44
Figure 2 - 75:	Entering a new transaction name2-45
Figure 2 - 76:	New transaction in Projects View2-45
Figure 2 - 77:	Creating a new transaction2-47

Figure 2 - 78:	New Transaction wizard2	2-47
Figure 2 - 79:	Entering a new transaction name2	2-48
Figure 2 - 80:	New transaction in Projects View2	2-48
Figure 2 - 81:	New transaction handler window2	2-49
Figure 2 - 82:	ongoogleSearchPageFREntry settings2	2-51
Figure 2 - 83:	New entry screen class handler in the Projects View	2-51
Figure 2 - 84:	Selection of a detection criterion for the GoogleSearchPageFR screen class2	2-52
Figure 2 - 85:	Expanding an element to find relevant attributes in the DOM Tree	2-52
Figure 2 - 86:	XPath expression of country-specific redirecting link	2-53
Figure 2 - 87:	New Statement wizard - Mouse action2	2-53
Figure 2 - 88:	Proper statement name2	2-54
Figure 2 - 89:	Improper statement name2	2-54
Figure 2 - 90:	New Mouse click statement on entry screen class handler2	2-54
Figure 2 - 91:	clickGoogleCom statement - Synchronization value2	2-54
Figure 2 - 92:	Trigger editor window2	2-55
Figure 2 - 93:	XML output of HTML elements clipped from Google search page2	2-57
Figure 2 - 94:	Last detected screen class	2-58
Figure 2 - 95:	HTML code of clipped Google logo and Google search form2	2-58
Figure 2 - 96:	HTML page header in XML output2	2-58
Figure 2 - 97:	Convertigo test platform URL2	2-59
Figure 2 - 98:	Test platform page2	2-60
Figure 2 - 99:	XML output of HTML elements clipped from Google search page2	2-61
Figure 2 - 100:	HTML code of clipped elements	2-62
Figure 3 - 1:	DoNothing style sheet	. 3-1
Figure 3 - 2:	Inherited DoNothing style sheet	. 3-2
Figure 3 - 3:	Transaction properties	. 3-2
Figure 3 - 4:	Setting the Style Sheet property to From last detected screen class	. 3-3
Figure 3 - 5:	Cliplet based on clipped HTML elements	. 3-4
Figure 3 - 6:	XML output in the Execution result window of the test platform	. 3-4



LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 3 - 7:	Element node managing Google logo centering	3-5
Figure 3 - 8:	Selection of extraction rule in Projects View	3-5
Figure 3 - 9:	Extraction rule properties	3-6
Figure 3 - 10:	Setting Enable paretn extraction of the cliplet property to true	3-6
Figure 3 - 11:	Cliplet in Browser tab of Studio with parent extraction enabled	3-7
Figure 3 - 12:	Cliplet in Execution result window of test platform with parent extractio enabled .	 3-7
Figure 3 - 13:	Center tag added to the code after parent extraction	3-8
Figure 3 - 14:	Hidden set of icons	3-8
Figure 3 - 15:	Set of icons displayed when pointing mouse cursor over it	3-9
Figure 3 - 16:	Google results in updated cliplet3	-10
Figure 3 - 17:	Execution window - Clipped results and navigation bar	-10
Figure 3 - 18:	Execution result window - second result page3	-11
Figure 3 - 19:	donothing.xsl file in Project Explorer3	-12
Figure 3 - 20:	New Sheet wizard3	-13
Figure 3 - 21:	Entering a name for the new style sheet3	-13
Figure 3 - 22:	New results style sheet in Projects View3	-14
Figure 3 - 23:	Style sheet properties	-14
Figure 3 - 24:	URL style sheet property3	-14
Figure 3 - 25:	Project tree structure in Project Explorer3	-15
Figure 3 - 26:	Name conflict window	-16
Figure 3 - 27:	New style sheet in Project Explorer3	-16
Figure 3 - 28:	results.xsl style sheet in Editor3	-17
Figure 3 - 29:	Template rule matching on any node3	-17
Figure 3 - 30:	Selecting an HTML element in the Connector View (result link)	-18
Figure 3 - 31:	Selection of node and generation of XPath3	-19
Figure 3 - 32:	XPath expression of selected node	-19
Figure 3 - 33:	Pasting the XPath value as match value in XSL file	-19
Figure 3 - 34:	Final template rule matching on links	-20
Figure 3 - 35:	Example of URL syntax for calling a transaction	-20

Figure 3 - 36:	Cliplet based on Google logo and search form	
Figure 3 - 37:	Cliplet based on results and navigation bar	
Figure 3 - 38:	Clicking on results page hypertext link	
Figure 3 - 39:	Target Web site displayed in new tab	
Figure 3 - 40:	Target Web site displayed in new window	





Table 1 - 1:	CWC objects	1-3
Table 1 - 2:	CWC default inherited screen classes	1-5
Table 1 - 3:	Screen class handler types	1-9
Table 1 - 4:	CWC views	1-10
Table 1 - 5:	Standard Eclipse buttons	1-11
Table 1 - 6:	Projects View tabs and icons	1-11
Table 1 - 7:	Properties View icons	1-14
Table 1 - 8:	Connector View parts	1-17
Table 1 - 9:	Connector View tabs, icons and field	1-18
Table 1 - 10:	Dom Tree icons	1-20
Table 1 - 11:	XPath Evaluator elements	1-21
Table 2 - 1:	Defined screen classes	2-11
Table 2 - 2:	Extraction rules	2-29
Table 2 - 3:	Maintains connector state property	2-46
Table 2 - 4:	Maintains connector state property	2-49
Table 2 - 5:	New transaction handler window description	2-50
Table 2 - 6:	Synchronizer types	2-55
Table 2 - 7:	Result property values for entry screen class handlers	2-56
Table 3 - 1:	Style Sheet transaction property	3-3
Table 3 - 2:	Execution result window icons	3-9





This chapter presents the purpose, concepts and objects of **Convertigo Web Clipper (CWC)**, one of Convertigo Enterprise Mashup Studio's components. It also describes the four views of the Eclipse-based CWC Studio and their elements (tabs, icons, menu).

- CWC Purpose
- CWC Concepts and Objects
- CWC Studio

1.1 CWC Purpose

The purpose of Convertigo Web Clipper (CWC) is to "clip" parts of a target application (a Web page for example) to generate "cliplets" that can be integrated into any business portal:



Figure 1 - 1: CWC "clips" parts of target applications to be integrated into business portals

This technology is known as "Web clipping".

Convertigo Web Clipper supports *application* clipping and not just *page* clipping. Application clipping enables users to get clipped responses from clipped pages instead of having the response displayed unclipped in a new window or a new frame. The functionnalities of clipped applications are thus preserved.



For example, if the target application supports column sorting, then the resulting cliplet also supports column sorting:

🖓 Convertigo Yiew ~ Salesforce - Developer Edition - Windows Internet Explorer										
Attps://na5.salesforce. Attps://na5.salesforce	.com/00Q?fcf=00870000005pc	Httdsi=-2		🗵 🔒	😽 🗙 Uve Searc	h .	P - 9			
👷 🎄 👩 Convertigo View ~ Salesfor	rce - Developer Edition				🙆 • 🔂 ·	🖶 🔹 🔂 Bage 🔹 🍈 Outils	+ 35			
Home Campaigns Leads	Accounts Contacts Op	portunities Forecasts C	Contracts	Setup - System Log - Heip - Logs Cases Solutions Products	Reports Docum	change Sales				
Search Search All	📌 Convertigo View				Printer	ale View Help for this Page 3				
Got	View: Convertigo V	iew Edit Crosto Nor A B C D E F O H I	<u>w View</u> J K L M	N 0 P Q R S T U V W	X Y Z Other	л				
Advanced Search	E Antina	(hange Sta	itus Chi	ange Owner Add to Campaig	9 1	-				
Create New	L Action Name	Company V	tional	Phone Street	therees	City Country Email			<hr/>	
Decent Items		Assessa Company Indenta	<u>ionai</u>	01 42 60 30 02 211 rue sain	a nonore	France				~
* <u>???</u>		Alaba Taxia	Sales Fo	rce Leads		Planet				000
* 222		222	Cales	force ⁻						
* 222		000	~ 5	on demand applications						
* 222		222	Name	Company	Phone 💙	Street	City	Country Ema	all	
× 272		111	272	222	05 61 31 72 00	222			Ŷ	LRP .
* 222		111	272	222	05 55 06 49 49	???		222		999
* 222		111	2772	<u>777</u>	03 88 65 71 71	777		777		502
* 222	I ILGR IDEL YYY	<u>111</u>	222	Aramis Communic Marketing	02 40 20 16 16	5 boulevard vincent gache		France		500
Airbus 900204			222	202	01 47 61 47 61	200		222		000
		VIDICIDICIPIO INTO	222	Aloha Taxis	0145858585	56 me albert		France	0	100
Recycle Bin			222	Mint-Merchandising Internationa	01 42 60 30 02	211 rue saint bonore		France	w.	500
	Home Campaigns L	ands Actounts Contacts	272	272	01 40 59 70 00	???		222	Ψ	199
	Copyright @ 2000-2	008 salesforce.com, inc. Alla	This is th	e footer						
1					📑 🕡 🗸 Sites de c	onfiance 🔍 100%	• //			

Figure 1 - 2: Web clipping preserves functionalities

CWC encompasses a large number of applications:

- Creating Widgets by clipping existing Web applications.
- Saving substantial amount of time by re-using business logic and presentation from existing Web applications.
- Integrating partner's Web applications into your corporate applications.
- Combining in mashups new and existing business logic and presentation.
- Non intrusively refacing existing Web applications to fit the corporate "look & feel".
- Non intrusively resizing or changing layouts of existing Web applications to fit new presentation media such as PDAs or smartphones.

1.2 CWC Concepts and Objects

This section presents the general concept and notions of the application. It then relates notions to real CWC objects, which are defined in detail in a dedicated sub-section.

- General Concept
- CWC Objects
- Definitions

1.2.1 General Concept

CWC accesses a target application via a *connector*. It then navigates through application *screens* by detecting to which *screen class* screens belong (based on detection *criteria*) and executes associated *extraction rules*. In CWC, extracting data means "clipping" user-selected

elements of an HTML page on the fly.

The clipping process results in the generation of a "cliplet". A cliplet is a widget made of clipped HTML elements. Its structure follows the order in which HTML parts of Web pages have been clipped - for example, if a logo is clipped before a search field, the logo will appear in the cliplet above the search field, and vice-versa.

Navigation and clipping depend on events, actions and rules corresponding to CWC objects, that are set as part of a Web clipping project. Navigation is automated via the definition of a *transaction*, which includes *screen class handlers* triggering *statements* (i.e. actions) on detection of *screen classes*.

1.2.2 CWC Objects

The following table describes CWC objects:

Object ^a	Description
Connector	Defines the type of application (HTTP, HTML, etc.) CWC connects to.
Screen class	Defines a family of HTML pages with common characteristics.
Criterion	Is a characteristic element defining a specific screen class.
Extraction rule	Is a rule defining how information is extracted from a Web screen.
Transaction	Defines the actions Convertigo must perform on HTML pages.
Screen class handler	Is a set of statements triggered on detection of a specific screen class.
Statement	Is an action or set of actions performed on HTML pages.

Table 1 - 1: CWC objects

a. Objects are indented in the column according to their indentation level in the Project tree of the Projects View (see Figure 1 - 3)

All of these objects are set when developing a Web clipping project. Once the project has been created, these objects appear in the **Projects View** of the CWC Studio (*"CWC Studio"* on page 1 - 9):





Figure 1 - 3: CWC object



To get started with your first Web clipping project, see "My First Convertigo Web Clipper Project" on page 2-1

1.2.3 Definitions

CONNECTOR

A connector defines the type of application or data source CWC is able to connect to.

One type of connector is available in CWC: the *HTML Connector*, which enables Convertigo to connect to any HTML-based application.

Connector parameters are set in the **New Project** wizard which opens when creating a Web clipping project (see *"Creating a Project and Setting Connector Parameters"* on page 2-6).

Once a new project has been created, the corresponding connector appears in the *Connectors* folder of the project, in the **Projects View** of the CWC Studio (*"CWC Studio"* on page 1 - 9):



Figure 1 - 4: Connectors folder

SCREEN CLASS

Screen classes define families of Web screens (Web page, application form, etc.) with common characteristics (called *criteria*). Screen classes are:

- uniquely identified by at least one criterion;
- associated to extraction rules.

A single root screen class, called **Default screen class**, is created by default when creating a project. The default screen class is not - but can be - associated with any criterion or extraction rule. It is parent to all other screen classes.

A screen class based on a parent screen class (defined with extra criteria and extraction rules for instance) is called *Inherited screen class*. It inherits criteria, extraction rules and style sheets from its parent screen class.

In CWC projects, the Default_Screen_Class has two default child screen classes:

Screen class	Description		
ClippedWebPages	Any screen class defined by the user must be child to the ClippedWebPages screen class.		
GenericWebPage	Any screen not detected as a user-defined screen class is detected as a GenericWebPage screen class.		

Table 1 - 2: CWC default inherited screen classes

The two default child screen classes (ClippedWebPages and GenericWebPage) appear in the **Projects View** in the **Inherited screen classes** folder of Default_Screen_Class:



Figure 1 - 5: Default CWC Screen classes

The ClippedWebPages and GenericWebPage screen classes inherit their parent screen class (Default_Screen_Class) extraction rules and sheets (style sheet associated with a screen class). As inherited objects, these objects appear greyed (see Figure 1 - 15) in the **Projects View**:





Figure 1 - 6: Objects inherited from the Default screen class



For more information on the DoNothing style sheet, see "The DoNothing Style Sheet" on page 3-1

Inherited screen classes appear in subfolders named *Inherited screen classes* in the **Projects View** of the CWC Studio (*"CWC Studio"* on page 1 - 9):



Figure 1 - 7: Screen classes and Inherited screen classes folders

CRITERION

A Web screen is considered belonging to a screen class when it matches all criteria defined by the user for this screen class. If no criterion matches, the Web screen is considered belonging to the default screen class (provided that the default screen class is not associated to any detection criterion). However, every page should at least match the GenericWebPage screen class (provided that the GenericWebPage screen class is associated to a criterion that does match on every HTML page).

Criteria are set using the *XPath language*, which addresses parts of an XML document; an XPath can be, for example, the path to a logo, a field, a word or any other identifying element on a Web screen. If at least one element is adressed by the XPath on the HTML page, the criterion matches.

XPaths are managed in the CWC Studio using the **XPath Evaluator**, which is part of the **Connector View** of the CWC Studio (*"CWC Studio"* on page 1 - 9).



Figure 1 - 8: Criterion and inherited criterion



The ClippedWebPages screen class does not have any detection criteria, since it is never *detected* stricto sensu (it only contains screen classes that can be detected).

The GenericWebPage screen class has one detection criterion called Exists node at "/ HTML":



Figure 1 - 9: GenericWebPage screen class - XPath criterion

This XPath (defined as /HTML) should match on *any* HTML Web page. Any screen not matching criteria of screen classes inherited from ClippedWebPages is therefore detected as a GenericWebPage screen class.

EXTRACTION RULE

Extraction rules define which data must be extracted (or "clipped" in CWC) from the target application. They are used to clip parts of an HTML document.

During a *transaction* process, when a screen class is detected (i.e. all criteria defined for this screen class match), all screen class-specific extraction rules -including those of its parent screen class - are executed (and corresponding HTML parts clipped) according to their order in the **Extraction rules** folder of the screen class.

The GenericWebPage screen class contains a specific extraction rule called WebClipper:



😑 🗁 Screen classes
😑 📇 Default_Screen_class
🗷 🗁 Extraction rules
😑 🗁 Inherited screen classes
🗈 📇 ClippedWebPages
😑 🔠 GenericWebPage
🗷 🧀 Criteria
🖃 🧀 Extraction rules
- Alert
🛞 WebClipper
E Sheets
🗄 🗁 Sheets

Figure 1 - 10: GenericWebPage screen class - WebClipper extraction rule

This extraction rule extracts the whole content of screens detected as belonging to the GenericWebPage screen class.

TRANSACTION

Web page navigation is performed using HTML transactions, that is to say a series of actions (called *statements*) performed from one Web screen to another. These actions are triggered by events associated with the kind of screen class accessed and detected, using *screen class handlers*.

Once a transaction has been defined, it appears in the *Transactions* folder of the project, in the **Projects View** of the CWC Studio (*"CWC Studio"* on page 1 - 9):



Figure 1 - 11: Transactions folder

SCREEN CLASS HANDLER

Basically, a screen class handler is meant to answer the following question : "Now that I have accessed this screen, what am I supposed to do?".

In other words, once a given screen class has been accessed and detected (depending on user-defined criteria), the corresponding screen class handler is invoked and triggers user-defined actions.

In CWC, two screen class handler types can be defined for a given screen class:

Screen class handler	Description
on <screenclass>Entry</screenclass>	Invoked when CWC detects a given < ScreenClass >. Is identified by a is ymbol on the left of the screen class handler name (see Figure 1 - 12).
on <screenclass>Exit</screenclass>	Invoked after extraction rules have been executed for a given < ScreenClass >. Is identified by a symbol on the left of the screen class handler name (see Figure 1 - 12).

Table 1 - 3: Screen class handler types



Other handlers exist, but they fall out of the scope of this guide.

Once a screen class handler has been created, it appears in the *Functions* folder of the transaction, in the **Projects View** of the CWC Studio (*"CWC Studio"* on page 1 - 9):



Figure 1 - 12: "On entry" and "on exit" screen class handlers

A screen class handler can contain one or several *statements*. For example: Type in a keyword (statement #1) then click on *Next* (statement #2):



Figure 1 - 13: List of statements

STATEMENT

A statement is an action that is performed on **entry** to or on **exit** from a Web screen, provided that the screen class of this Web screen has been detected. Statements include mouse clicks, data inputs, etc.

1.3 CWC Studio

This section describes the CWC Studio, which comprises four distinct panes: the **Projects View**, the **Connector View**, the **Properties View** and the **Console**.



- General Presentation
- View Description

1.3.1 General Presentation

Based on an Eclipse platform, the CWC Studio is divided into four views that all include:

- one or several tabs, located either on the upper or on the lower part of the view;
- icons;
- three standard Eclipse buttons (Menu \checkmark , Minimize \square and Maximize \square)

The four views are illustrated and named in the figure below:

Convertigo - sample_documentation_CWC/GoogleCo	nnector - Studio
File Edit Navigate Search Projects View Window	v Help Connector View
i 🖬 • 🖬 🖆 i 🥵 • i 📈 • 🗆 🔪 🖓 •	r 🗘 -
Projects 🛛 🕒 Project Explorer 🗖 🗖	ac sample_documentation_CWC GoogleConnector 🛛 🗖 🗖
	😰 🐉 🔕 🖒 🖒 Current selection :
Sample_documentation_CWC	🔇 🦻 🗢 🔇 🕤 🔇 🗶 Address http://www.google.com/
e 🗟 GoogleConnector	
Screen classes	HEAD IGoogle Search settings Sign in
😑 📇 Default_Screen_class	B ● META
🖨 🗁 Extraction rules	
Alert	
😑 🧁 Inherited screen classes	
ClippedWebPages	
Extraction rules	B ● STYLE
Inherited screen classes	
	DOM Tree Advanced St
	Language T
🖻 🧀 Sheets	XPath Evaluator
🗈 🔠 GoogleSearchPage 💌	Document
X	
Properties 🛛 📔 🍰 🗔 🍸 🗖 🗍	
Property Value	Output Design
Configuration	
Attributes [[src], [href], [backgro	🖉 Tasks 🖳 Console 🕺 🦞 Error Log
Epable HT disable	Studio
Enable pa false	DEBUG 2009-11-23 16:23:44.375 ==> Getting property log.level: "3"
Is active true	MESSAGE 2009-11-23 16:23:44.375 Starting the Convertigo studio eclipse plugin
Information	HESSAGE 2009-11-23 15:23:44.375 Starting the embedded londat
Depth n/a	MESSAGE 2009-11-23 16:23:11.106 Convertigo Statied
Java class com.twinsoft.convertig	
Properties View	Console View

Figure 1 - 14: CWC Studio

The following table describes the views of the Convertigo Web Clipper studio:

Table 1 - 4: CWC views

View Name	Description
Projects View	Displays in a tree structure all CWC projects and their related objects: connectors, screen classes (including criteria, extraction rules and inherited screen classes) and transactions (including screen class handlers and statements).
Properties View	Displays the properties of the CWC object selected in the Projects View . Used to modify a given object's properties.

View Name	Description
Connector View / Editor	 The Connector View is divided into three parts: the DOM Tree - displays the Document Object Model Tree (logical structure) of the Web page accessed by CWC; the Web Browser - displays the Web page accessed by CWC, depending on the connector parameters set for the project; the XPath Evaluator - displays XPath-specific information such as the XPath expression of a node. Contains shortcuts (icons) for creating new children screen classes, criteria, extraction rules, statements, etc. It is automatically updated as an Editor whenever files (in editable format such as .xml, .css or .xsl) are edited.
Console View	Standard Eclipse console. Displays information about running tasks, errors, etc. Different consoles are available (standard output, Engine, Studio, etc.).

Table 1 - 4: CWC views (...)

1.3.2 View Description

All four views contain common standard Eclipse buttons in the upper right corner of the view:

Table 1 - 5: Standard Eclipse but

Button	lcon	Description
Menu		Opens a drop-down menu with a content identical to the view toolbar.
Minimize		Minimizes the current view without closing it. The view is still visible in the form of an icon that can be clicked to be enlarged again.
Maximize		Maximizes the current view to full screen. Maximizing a view can also be achieved by double clicking the upper bar of the view.

The following section describes the four panes of the CWC Studio in further detail.

PROJECTS VIEW

The **Projects View** displays all information (objects, folders and files) associated with a project. Information appears in distinct tree structures depending on the selected tab.

In addition to project tree structures and standard Eclipse buttons (see Table 1 - 5 on page 1-11), the **Projects View** includes tabs and icons:

Table 1 - 6: Projects	View tabs and icons
-----------------------	---------------------

	View Element	Description
Tabs	Project	Convertigo view. Contains all projects and related objects. Objects are presented in a tree structure and contained in folders.
	Project Explorer	Standard Eclipse view. Contains all projects and related files. Files are represented in a tree structure.
Icons	\mathbf{P}	<i>Find</i> icon. Search project tree for a specific object
	•	<i>Decrease priority</i> icon. Available only if an extraction rule is selected. Decreases its priority, thus changing extraction rules execution order for this screen class and its children classes.



Table 1 - 6: Projects View tabs and icons (...)

View Element	Description
•	Increase priority icon. Available only if an extraction rule is selected. Increases its priority, thus changing extraction rules execution order for this screen class and its children classes.
	Save icon. Available only when at least one object has been modified. Saves all the project. All objects will be saved, and project xml file will be updated. Remember to save projects on a regular basis.
	<i>Refresh</i> icon. Available only if a project is selected. Refreshes Projects View by reloading project content from the hard drive. Identical to closing and re-opening project.
3	<i>Import</i> icon. Imports a new project (in CAR or XML format) in the Studio.

In the Projects View, objects are formatted depending on their status:

- plain text unchanged object;
- bold object changed and unsaved;
- red disabled object;
- orange not executable object (child of a disabled object);
- grey inherited object.

The figure below shows the different types of formatting in the **Projects View**.



Figure 1 - 15: Formatting of unsaved, inherited and disabled objects in the Projects View

Once an object has been selected in the **Projects View**, its properties appear in the **Properties View**.

PROPERTIES VIEW

The Properties View displays the properties of the object selected in the Projects View.

Properties depend on the type of the selected object. They are presented by categories (*Expert, Configuration, Information, Selection, Properties*, etc. - categories can be hidden by clicking on $\boxed{1}$) that can be either expanded or collapsed by clicking respectively on $\boxed{1}$ or $\boxed{1}$.



Property	Value
	Value
Configuration	
Attributes	[[src], [href], [background], [action], [cite], [classi
Comment	
Enable HTTP tunnel	disable
Enable parent extraction	false
Is active	true
Information	
Depth	n/a
Java class	com.twinsoft.convertigo.beans.common.WebClipper
Name	WebClipResults
Priority	1249303975741
QName	/sample_documentation_CWC/_data/cn/QQMIKUb/
Туре	WebClipper
Selection	
XPath	//DIV[@id="res"]

Figure 1 - 16: Properties View

In addition to object properties and standard Eclipse buttons (see Table 1 - 5 on page 1-11), the **Properties View** includes one tab (*Properties*) and icons:

Table 1 - 7: Properties View icons

lcon	Description
	Show Categories icon. Displays or hides property categories. When categories are hidden, properties appear in alphabetical order.
	Show Advanced Properties icon. Displays or hides advanced properties, if relevant. Not used for Convertigo objects properties.
	Restore Default Value icon. Available only when a property has been modified. Restores it to default value. Not used for Convertigo objects properties.

To edit properties

1 Left-click on the property value in the **Properties View**.

• the value is highlighted with white background; edit it by typing a new value in the field:

Properties	
Comment	
XPath	//DIV[@id="res"]
	S
and and	manne

Figure 1 - 17: Text property field edition

• the value is highlighted with clear blue background; edit it by typing a new javascript expression in the field:



Figure 1 - 18: Javascript expression field edition

• the value is higlighted and a . symbol appears on the right of the field:

П	Commone		
	Is active	true	!cems
	XPath	'//A[contains(text(),"Next")]' 🛛 🌔 🛄) cer
			!cen.
		and a set of a	!c
M	the second second		<u> </u>

Figure 1 - 19: Text property edition via edition window

Click on . Depending on the property type:

Javascript expression	
'//A[contains(text(),"Next")]'	
	>
OK Canc	el

A. A Javascript expression window or an edition window opens:

Figure 1 - 20: Javascript expression window



Web Clipping project	
	OK Cancel

Figure 1 - 21: Edition window

- 1 Enter the new JavaScript expression or the text comment in the window.
- 2 Click on **OK**.
- **B.** A configuration window opens (in this example, the **Trigger Editor** window for statement synchronization):

Trigger editor	
Type of synchronizer Timeout (ms)	Document completed
This synchronizer wait	for a number of document completed.
	OK Cancel

Figure 1 - 22: Configuration window

- 1 Set the parameters in the different fields and menus.
- 2 Click on OK.
- the value is higlighted and a vy symbol appears on the right of the field:

Properties		!cem
Action	click 🖉 💽	Cems
Comment	\mathbf{U}	!cems
Is active	true	!cen.
XPath	'//A[contains(text(),"Next")]'	!ce
time and the second		<u> </u>

Figure 1 - 23: Text property edition via drop-down menu

1 Click on	🔽. A drop-down	menu appears:
------------	----------------	---------------

Properties	Ploase action	!ce:
Action	click 🔍	!cem
Comment		!cen
Is active	mousedown	!ce
XPath	mouseup	!cem
	mouseout V	!ce
	modscode	!cer
	and a set of a	10
XPath	mouseouer mouseout	

Figure 1 - 24: Selecting a value in the drop-down menu

- 2 Select a value in the drop-down menu.
- 3 Press Enter.

CONNECTOR VIEW

The **Connector View** displays connector-specific information. This information depends on the type of connector set for the project. In the case of HTML connectors, the view is divided into three parts.

The table below describes these parts:

Table 1 - 8: Connector View parts

Name	Description
Dom Tree	Displays the logical structure of the Web page displayed in the Web Browser .
Web Browser	Displays the Web page accessed by CWC.
XPath Evaluator	Displays the XPath expression of HTML elements selected in the Web Browser and result nodes of the written XPath execution on the DOM Tree . Includes shortcuts to create new criteria, statements, screen class, etc.

As other views, the Connector View also includes tabs and icons:



Sample_documentation_CWC GoogleConnector 🕴 View toolbar						
😰 🔁 🧕 🕸 🖒 🖒 Curren	nt selection : HTML/BODY/CENTER					
🗞 🍃 🗇 🕁	🕞 😔 💸 🗶 Address http://www.google.com/					
	Google Search I'm Feeling Lucky					
	Advertising Programs - Business Solutions - About Google - Go to Go					
Path //INPUT[@class=	"!st"]					
Document						
Image: Second secon	XPath Evaluator					
Output Design View	tabs					

Figure 1 - 25: Connector View (Design tab selected)

The table below describes the Connector View icons that are available when the **Design** tab is selected (by default):

	View Element	Description		
Tab	Output	Displays the XML code generated following either a transaction (according to extraction rules) or a <i>Generate XML</i> action (see Figure 1 - 26).		
	Design	Displays the Dom Tree, Web Browser and XPath Evaluator.		
Icon	2	<i>Toggle auto refresh domTree</i> icon. Press this icon to activate the auto refresh domTree function, which automatically refreshes the DOM Tree when a new Web page is displayed in the Web Browser.		
	₹¥	Show current screen class icon. Highlights in light grey in the Projects View the screen class detected for the Web page currently displayed in the Web Browser .		
	9	Generate XML icon. Generates the XML code of the Web page currently displayed in the Web Browser by executing the related extraction rules. The XML code is displayed under the Output tab of the Connector View .		
	8	Stop transaction icon. Stops the current transaction (while a transaction is in process).		
	¢	<i>Learn</i> icon. Available only when a transaction is selected. Activates the <i>Learn</i> mode - any action made on the HTML connector view will be recorded and HTTP statements will automatically be generated in screen classes entry handlers. For advanced users only.		

Table 1 - 9: Connector View tabs, icons and field

Table 1 ·	- 9:	Connector	View	tabs.	icons	and	field (())
-----------	------	-----------	------	-------	-------	-----	---------	----	---

View Element		Description		
	⇔	Accumulate learning mode icon. Available only when Learn mode is on. Accumulates data on visited Web screens. Screen class exit handlers will automatically be created in the transaction. For advanced users only.		
Field	Current selection	Displays the path to the node selected in the DOM Tree (left- click) or to the HTML element selected in the Web Browser (right-click).		

When the Output tab is selected, the view displays XML code:



Figure 1 - 26: Connector View (Output tab selected)

DOM TREE

The **DOM Tree** models an HTML (or XML) document as a tree structure called *node-tree*. It contains all nodes (parents, children and siblings) of the HTML document it models (which is displayed in the **Web Browser** in the CWC Studio):

- root nodes;
- element nodes;
- text nodes;
- attribute nodes;
- namespace nodes;
- processing instruction nodes;



comment nodes.

🗞 🦻 🗢 🗢	
🖃 🕘 HTML 🧹 🔼	Root node
🗄 🖷 🕒 HEAD	
🖮 🗉 BODY	
Attributes	Element node
	Liononchodo
I id="csi"	Attribute node
📃 📕 style="display: none;" 📒	
T 1	Text node
🗄 🔍 🔍 IFRAME	
🗄 🖷 🕒 DIV	
🛓 🖳 🕒 DIV	
😟 🖤 🕒 DIV	
😟 🖷 🔍 DIV 📃	
庄 🔍 🌒 CENTER	
🗄 🖷 🕒 DIV 💽	
<	

Figure 1 - 27: DOM Tree

The table below describes the Dom Tree icons:

Table 1 - 10: Dom Tree icons

lcon	Description
\$	<i>SyncTree</i> icon. Synchronizes the DOM Tree with the HTML page currently displayed in the Web Browser .
*	Parent node icon. Selects and highlights in green the parent node of the node currently selected in the DOM Tree . Also outlines in green the corresponding HTML element in the Web Browser .
¢	<i>Previous node</i> icon. Selects and highlights in green the node appearing before the node currently selected in the DOM Tree . Also outlines in green the corresponding HTML element in the Web Browser .
⇔	<i>Next node</i> icon. Selects and highlights in green the node appearing after the node currently selected in the DOM Tree . Also outlines in green the corresponding HTML element in the Web Browser .

WEB BROWSER

The **Web Browser** displays the Web page accessed by CWC. Its logical structure is displayed in the DOM Tree on the left of the browser.

The **Web Browser** automatically displays the HTML page of the HTTP server defined as **Target Server** in the connector parameters (see *"Creating a Project and Setting Connector Parameters"* on page 2-6).

All HTML elements (image, text, field, etc.) of Web pages displayed in the **Web Browser** can be selected with a right-click. Once selected, they appear outlined in green in the **Web Browser**, and their corresponding element node is highlighted in green in the **DOM Tree**:



Figure 1 - 28: HTML element selected in the Web Browser

The XPath expression of selected elements can be generated either by right-clicking the required element node in the **DOM Tree** and selecting **Generate selection XPath (Enter)** or by selecting it with a left-click and pressing **Enter**. The XPath expression then appears in the **XPath Evaluator**.

The Web Browser includes a toolbar with:

- standard Browser icons Back, Forward, Refresh, Stop;
- an address bar;
- icons to manage Web page tabs New, Close, Next, Previous. The Allow alert box icon

allows to display Λ or block χ javascript pop-ups (blocked by default in CWC).

XPATH EVALUATOR

The purpose of the **XPath Evaluator** is to display the XPath expression of HTML elements previously selected (with a right-click) in the **Web Browser**. The **Document** field displays the results from running the XPath expression specified in the **xPath** field on the **DOM Tree**.

The **XPath Evaluator** also contains icons for creating new CWC objects (statements, criteria, screen classes, etc.) from the XPath currently displayed in the **xPath** field.

Path //B[@class="gb1" and contains(text(),"Web")]	< >
Document	
🕑 🖻 😐 root	
3 3 B	Image: A start of the start

Figure 1 - 29: XPath Evaluator

The table below describes the fields and icons of the XPath Evaluator:

Table 1 - 11: XPath Evaluator elements

XPath Evaluator Elements		Description
Field	xPath	Displays the XPath expression generated from the Dom Tree . XPath expressions can also be typed in directly and evaluated on the DOM Tree



Table 1 - 11: XPath Evaluator elements (...)

XPath Evaluator Elements		Description
	Document	Displays the results from running the XPath expression specified in the <i>xPath</i> field on the DOM Tree .
lcon	e	Create new child screen class from current XPath icon. Launches the New Screen Class wizard.
	8	<i>Create new criterion from current XPath</i> icon. Launches the New Criterion wizard.
	•	<i>Create new extraction rule from current XPath</i> icon. Launches the New Extraction Rule wizard.
		Create new statement from current XPath icon. Launches the New Statement wizard. Available when a suitable handler or container is selected in the Projects View only.
	\bigcirc	<i>Evaluate XPath</i> icon. Evaluates the XPath expression specified in the <i>xPath</i> field on the DOM Tree . The result is displayed in the <i>Document</i> field.
		Backward XPath History icon. Displays in the <i>xPath</i> field the previous XPath stored in the XPath history.
	٢	<i>Forward XPath History</i> icon. Displays in the <i>xPath</i> field the next XPath stored in the XPath history.
	€	Set Anchor icon. Applicable after an XPath has been generated for a given node. Fixes this XPath and highlights it in yellow. Used to develop complex XPath from an anchored XPath.


This chapter gives instructions on how to set up a simple CWC project.

- Web Clipping Project
- Setting Up the Project

2.1 Web Clipping Project

This section describes the sample Web Clipping project and how to open the completed sample project from the Studio:

- Project Description
- Opening the Sample Project from the Studio

2.1.1 **Project Description**

The purpose of this Web clipping project (called sample_doc_CWC) is to:

- Connect to the Google search page (at www.google.com) and clip the Google logo and search form (search field, buttons and associated links) from it.
- *Launch* a search from the cliplet resulting from this first clipping.
- Get results from the Google servers and *clip*, on Google *result* pages, *results* as well as the Google *navigation bar*.
- Navigate through results using the cliplet and open accessed result Web pages in new tabs in your browser.

The process can be basically summed up as follows:

1 Connect to the Google HTTP server at www.google.com:





Figure 2 - 1: Connection to Google Web site



When accessing the www.google.com Website, Google servers provide Internet users all around the world with a "localized" version of the Google search engine. This adds an extra step to the project, since CWC must then be redirected to the standard Google home page (see "Case of a Country-Specific Google Search Page - Definition of the GoogleSearchPageFR Screen Class" on page 2-25).

2 Clip the Google logo:

Web Images Videos Maps News Shopping Gmail more ▼	<u>iGoogle Sign in</u>
Google	
Advanced Search Coogle Search I'm Feeling Lucky Language Tools	1
New! <u>Land on the Moon</u> in Google Earth.	
Advertising Programs - Business Solutions - About Google - Go to Google France	
82009 - <u>Privacy</u>	

Figure 2 - 2: Clipping the Google logo

3 Clip the Google search form:



Figure 2 - 3: Clipping the Google search form (field and associated buttons and links)

4 Generate a cliplet based on these elements and have it displayed in the browser:



Figure 2 - 4: Cliplet generated based on Google logo and serach field clipping

- 5 Manually launch a search from the cliplet.
- 6 Clip results as well as the Google navigation bar:





Figure 2 - 5: Clipping results and the Google navigation bar

7 Display clipped elements in browser:



Figure 2 - 6: Clipped results and navigation bar

The cliplet creates a *light* version of the Google search engine, with only well-targeted information (results and navigation bar; no ads, promotional links, etc.). The user can navigate through results as if in a standard Google page and present data as required using specific style sheets (see *"Editing an XSL Style Sheet"* on page 3-12).

2.1.2 Opening the Sample Project from the Studio

The completed sample project is stored in the application installation folder.

The following procedure describes how to access it from the Studio using the **New Project** wizard.

To open the sample project from the Studio

1 In the **Studio** toolbar, click on **New > Project**.



Figure 2 - 7: Launching the New Project wizard

A New Project wizard opens.

2 Expand Convertigo Projects, then Documentation Samples, and select Web Clipping:



Figure 2 - 8: Selecting the CWC sample project

3 Click on **Next**, then **Finish**.

The sample project opens in the Projects View:

🎦 Projects 🛛 🖒 Project Expl 🧮	
🔎 🔻 👍 😫 🌶	75
sample_documentation_CWC	
	ыГ.

Figure 2 - 9: Sample project in Projects View

You can now start setting up your own CWC project, sample_doc_CWC.



2.2 Setting Up the Project

The following sections explain step by step how to set up your first Web clipping project:

- Creating a Project and Setting Connector Parameters
- Defining Screen Classes
- Defining a Transaction
- Executing a Transaction

2.2.1 Creating a Project and Setting Connector Parameters

This section shows how to create a project and set connector parameters.

In this example:

- the project is called sample_doc_CWC;
- the connector is an HTML connector called GoogleConnector accessing the www.google.com Web site.

To create a project and set a connector

- 1 Launch the **Convertigo Studio**.
- 2 Select File > New > Project or click on The toolbar then select Project.

New Project				
Select a wizard				
Wizards:				
type filter text				
 General Convertigo Projects CV5 CV5 CV5 CV5 CV5 CV5 CV5 Web Examples 				
0	< Back	Next >	Finish	Cancel

A New Project wizard opens:

Figure 2 - 10: New Project Wizard

3 Expand Convertigo Projects, then Web Clipping and select Web Clipping:



Figure 2 - 11: Selecting a project type

4 Click on Next:

New Convertigo project
This wizard creates a new Convertigo project
Please use a relevant project name. Avoid the use of special characters (âàébêù) and punctuation characters as space, pound or others. We suggest you use only lowercase letters. If you use uppercase letters, be sure use the same letter case when you will call transactions using the convertigo's uri interface. The project name also defines the Convertigo's obvical and virtual directories:
 All your project's ressources will be held in the convertigo/tomcat/webapps/<your_project_name> directory.</your_project_name> Your project's URL will be http://<server_name>:<port>/projects/<your_project_name>/.cxml</your_project_name></port></server_name>
Project's name sample_doc_CWC
Cancel

Figure 2 - 12: Entering a project name

- 5 In the **Project's name** field, type in the project name (for example sample_doc_CWC).
- 6 Click on Next:



-	
Set Connector This step creates	r name s a new Convertigo connector for the project
A connector estal The connector is a	blishes the connection beteween a data source and Convertigo. used by Convertigo to collect the data that will be formatted as an XML document.
You will be able la	ter on to add new connectors to your project.
Please choose a r	name for this connector.
Connector name	Googlet-onnector
0	< Back Next > Einish Cancel

Figure 2 - 13: Entering a connector name

The **Connector name** field is filled by default with the connector name sample_doc_CWCConnector. You can choose another name (for example GoogleConnector).

7 Click on Next:

2	
Define HTTP or HTML Connector parameters This step configures the HTTP or Web connector parameters	
The chosen project template includes a HTTP type connector. This connector needs a HTTP server address and a HTTP server port (Default is 80). Check the SSL box is you need an SSLv3 connection to the targer server. If you need a proxy to acces the target server, please configure the proxy address and port. Please provide this information here Target Server HTTP Server Www.google.com HTTP Port SSL	
Proxy Server Proxy server Proxy port SSL	

Figure 2 - 14: Setting HTTP or HTML connector parameters

- 8 Enter the required information in the **Target Server** section:
 - in the HTTP server field, type in the target Web site URL address (for example www.google.com);
 - in the HTTP Port field, type in the HTTP port if required (left blank in this sample project);

- check the SSL checkbox to connect to a secured HTTP server (HTTPS server).
- 9 If you're using a proxy server to access the Web, enter the required information in the Proxy Server section (Proxy Server address, Proxy Port and SSL).
- 10 Click on Next.

The New project summary window opens:

2	
New project summary	
This step summarizes all the configuration options	
Here are all the configuration options you chose during the projet setup. Click "finish" to create the project or "back" to review parameters.	
Project name : sample_doc_CWC	
Connector name : GoogleConnector	
Target server : http://www.google.com:80	
Proxy server : http://:8080	
Image: Section of the sectio	Cancel

Figure 2 - 15: New project summary window

11 Check that all settings are correct, then click on **Finish**. The project now appears in the **Projects View**:



Figure 2 - 16: sample_doc_CWC project appearing in the Projects View

Three default screen classes and one default transaction have been created in their respective folders (*Screen Classes* and *Transactions* - see "*Screen Class*" on page 1-5 for more information on default screen classes).

The HTML page of the HTTP server specified as **Target Server** opens in the **Web Browser** of the **Connector View**, with its **DOM Tree** to the left:



🐠 legacyCRM legacyCRN	1C 🗇 sampleGoogle2 Google 🍽 sampleGoogle GoogleC 🛛 🔭 🗖 🗖		
2 🕸 🙆 😂	Current selection :		
🍫 Þ 🗢	Image: Second system Image: S		
HTML	Web Images Vidéo Maps Actualités Groupes Gmail plus 🔻 🤷		
BODY	<u>iGoogle</u> <u>Connexion</u>		
	France		
	Recherche avancée		
	Recherche Google J'ai de la chance <u>Outils linguistiques</u>		
	Rechercher dans : 💿 Web 🔘 Pages francophones 🔘 Pages : France 📃		
	Programmes de nublicité - Solutions d'entrenrise - À nronos de Google -		

Figure 2 - 17: DOM Tree and Web Browser

This is the starting point of the project.

WHAT COMES NEXT?

The following steps consist in defining a set of screen classes and in setting their *detection criteria* (in other words, HTML elements - text, links, logos, etc. - defining a Web screen in a unique manner).

When CWC accesses a page, all criteria are checked; if all criteria defined for a screen class match page elements, then CWC associates the page to this screen class. The *extraction rules* as well as *statements* associated with the detected screen class are then executed and required parts of the HTML document are clipped.

2.2.2 Defining Screen Classes

This section shows how to create and define screen classes.

To define a screen class, you must first find, on the accessed Web page, which element can be considered sufficiently relevant to serve as detection criterion. Using a screen element as detection criterion for a screen class means:

- 1 Selecting the element on the screen (right-click).
- 2 *Finding* its most accurate node(s) in the DOM Tree.
- 3 Generating its XPath.
- 4 *Creating* the corresponding screen class from the generated XPath expression.

DEFINED SCREEN CLASSES

In our sample project, two main screen classes are created:

Name	Description	Detection criteria
GoogleSearchPage	Correspond to Google search pages.	Google logo + plain Web link
GoogleResultsPage	Corresponds to the Google results page.	Google result + plain Web link

Table 2 - 1: Defined screen classes

These screen classes are children screen classes of the ClippedWebPages screen class (see "Screen Class" on page 1-5).



For projects set in countries for which a country-specific Google homepage exists, a third screen class must be defined (named GoogleSearchPageFR in our project, see "Case of a Country-Specific Google Search Page - Definition of the GoogleSearchPageFR Screen Class" on page 2-25). This screen class is detected using an hypertext link (either "Google.com in English" or "Go to Google.com" depending on the country) of country-specific Google homepages. This link is used to redirect CWC back to the standard Google.com search page.

The following figures show the HTML elements chosen as detection criteria for defining the GoogleSearchPage and GoogleResultsPage screen classes:



Figure 2 - 18: Google logo (GoogleSearchPage screen class)



Figure 2 - 19: Plain "Web" link (GoogleSearchPage and GoogleResultsPage screen classes)





Figure 2 - 20: Google result (GoogleResultsPage screen class)

DEFINITION OF THE GoogleSearchPage SCREEN CLASS

The first screen class to be created is GoogleSearchPage.

WHY IS THE GoogleSearchPage SCREEN CLASS NEEDED?

This screen class corresponds to the first page accessed by CWC (using the **HTTP server** parameter set for the connector when creating the project): the Google search page. It must be defined for CWC to be able to clip the Google logo and search form according to extraction rules created later on in the project see *"Creating Extraction Rules"* on page 2-28).

WHAT ARE THE GoogleSearchPage SCREEN CLASS DETECTION CRITERIA?

The GoogleSearchPage screen class is detected using two detection criteria:

- the Google homepage logo;
- the "Web" plain link in the upper left corner of the Google search page.

What are the basic steps for creating the GoogleSearchPage screen class?

The basic steps for creating this screen class are the following:

- 1 In the Google search page, *right-click* the Google logo.
- 2 Select an appropriate element node in the **DOM Tree**.
- 3 *Generate* the XPath corresponding to the previously selected element.
- 4 *Create* the new screen class from generated XPath.
- 5 *Right-click* the "Web" text item.
- 6 Generate the Xpath corresponding to the previously selected element.
- 7 *Add* a second criterion to the screen class previously generated.

To create the GoogleSearchPage screen class

1 Select ClippedWebPages with a left-click in the **Projects View** (GoogleSearchPage is a child screen class of ClippedWebPages):



Figure 2 - 21: Selection of the parent screen class

2 Right-click on the Google logo in the Google search page displayed in the Web Browser.

The element is outlined in green in the **Web Browser** and its element node is highlighted in green in the **DOM Tree**.



Figure 2 - 22: Selection of a detection criterion for the googleSearchPage screen class

This detection criterion is selected because the Google search page does include a Google logo, whereas results pages do not. Therefore, it will be a good differentiator between the GoogleSearchPage and GoogleResultsPage screen classes.

3 Expand the **DOM Tree** to select the most relevant element node for this detection criterion:





Figure 2 - 23: Attribute nodes of the HTML element selected as detection criterion for the GoogleSearchPage screen class

An id attribute node appears in the tree. This attribute always define an HTML element in a unique manner, so this is the best candidate for generating the XPath corresponding to the IMG element.



When present, the NAME attribute is also a good candidate. On the contrary, avoid using attribute nodes such as *SRC* and *HREF*, which are never good candidates for generating XPath corresponding to detection criteria (their value often changes).

Right-click the id="logo" attribute node and select Generate selection XPath (Enter) or select the attribute node with a left-click and press Enter.



Figure 2 - 24: Selection of nodes and generation of XPath



You can also right-click the parent IMG element and select **Generate** selection XPath (Enter) or select the IMG element with a left-click and press Enter: the XPath will intelligently be generated with the id attribute, since it exists.

The XPath expression of the selected node appears in the **XPath Evaluator**.



Figure 2 - 25: XPath expression of the selected node (corresponding to Google logo)

- 5 In the XPath Evaluator, click on the Create new child screen class from current
 - XPath icon 📳 . The New Screen Class wizard opens:

New Screen Cla	55	
Please select a scre	en class template.	
😰 Screen cla	365	
0	< Back Next > Finish	Cancel

Figure 2 - 26: New Screen Class wizard

- 6 Click on Screen class.
- 7 Click on Next:

~		
Inform	ations	
Please	enter a name for object.	
<u>N</u> ame:	GoogleSearchPage	
?	< <u>B</u> ack	Next > Einish Cancel

Figure 2 - 27: Giving a name to the new screen class

- 8 Type in the name of the new screen class (for example GoogleSearchPage).
- 9 Click on **Finish**.



The screen class now appears in the **Projects View** as an *inherited* screen class of the ClippedWebPages screen class:



Figure 2 - 28: GoogleSearchPage screen class and defined criterion

The criterion previously defined for the screen class is automatically generated and appears in the related **Criteria** folder.

10 Save your project by clicking on **[**] or by pressing Ctrl + S.



Remember to save your project on a regular basis.

The next step consists in adding a second detection criteria to the screen class. This second criterion is the "Web" link displayed in the upper left corner of Google Web pages.



A second detection criterion is added to the screen class definition to minimize the risk of "misdetection" when accessing a Google page with a Google logo, which could be an Image or Video Google page, and not a "Web" one.

11 In the **Web Browser**, right-click on the word "Web" in the upper left corner of the Google search page.

The element is outlined in green in the **Web Browser** and its element node is highlighted in green in the **DOM Tree**:

🔹 GoogleWebClippingSample GoogleConnector 🛛 🖓
Elimination : HTML/BODY/DIV[1]/NOBR/B Current selection : HTML/BO
💸 🕏 🗇 🗢 🛛 🧕 🔇 💥 Address http://www.google.com/ 💿 👗 🖆 🖄 🖄 1 /1
BODY Attributes ■ • • IFRAME ■ • • IFRAME ■ • • DIV ■ • • Attributes
Advanced Search
A Google Search I'm Feeling Lucky Language Tools
×Path

Figure 2 - 29: Second detection criterion of the GoogleSearchPage screen class

12 Expand the B element in the **DOM Tree**:



Figure 2 - 30: Expanding an element to find relevant attribute nodes in the DOM Tree

Two nodes are associated with the B element: an attribute node (class="gbl"), which



represents the element class, and a text node (Web), which represents the element content.

We will select both and generate the XPath from the selection:

- 13 While keeping the Shift button pressed, select class="gb1" and Web in the DOM Tree with a left-click.
- 14 Press Enter or right-click on the selection and select Generate selection XPath (Enter).



Figure 2 - 31: Generating XPath from class and text content

An XPath expression corresponding to the selected HTML element (i.e. "Web" item) and based on the two nodes selected as detection criteria appears in the **XPath Evaluator**:

xPath //B[@class="gb1" and contains(text(),"Web")] Document O = o root	XPath expression of selected detection criterion	<
B B B B B B Class="gb1" Web		<u>></u>

Figure 2 - 32: XPath expression of second selected criterion of the GoogleSearchPage screen class

The results from running the XPath expression on the DOM appear in the **Document** window.

We will now add this XPath as extra criterion to the corresponding screen class, GoogleSearchPage.

- **15** Select GoogleSearchPage with a left-click in the **Projects View**.
- 16 In the XPath Evaluator, click on the Create new criterion from current XPath icon



The New Criteria wizard opens:

4	
New Criteria Please select a criteria template.	
🕵 XPath	
O < Back Next >	Finish Cancel

Figure 2 - 33: New Criteria wizard

- 17 Click on XPath, then on Next.
- **18** Type in the name of the new criterion (for example XPath_Web) in the **Name** field.
- 19 Click on Finish.

The new criterion appears in the **Criteria** folder of the GoogleSearchPage screen class:



Figure 2 - 34: New criterion in the Criteria folder of the screen class

20 Save your project by clicking on 🤖 or by pressing Ctrl + S.



Remember to save your project on a regular basis.

To check if detection criteria are correct for this screen class

Assuming that the **Web Browser** currently displays a Google search page, click on the **Show** current screen class icon 🔁 in the **Connector View** toolbar.

Expected result: In the **Projects View**, the GoogleSearchPage screen class is automatically highlighted, showing that detection criteria identifying this screen class do all match on the accessed Web page.





Figure 2 - 35: Highlighted screen class after Go to current screen class object command

DEFINITION OF THE GoogleResultsPage SCREEN CLASS

The following step consists in creating a second screen class corresponding to Google result pages: GoogleResultsPage.

WHY IS THE GoogleResultsPage SCREEN CLASS NEEDED?

Here are the first few steps of the clipping process:

1 Once the project transaction is launched, CWC connects to the www.google.com Web page (Google search page), which is detected as a GoogleSearchPage screen class.



For Internet users accessing the www.google.com Web site from a country for which a country-specific Google homepage exists, another step is needed here (redirection from country-specific page to Google.com page in English). For more information, see "Case of a Country-Specific Google Search Page - Definition of the GoogleSearchPageFR Screen Class" on page 2-25.

- 2 The Google logo and search form are clipped and presented to the user in a cliplet.
- 3 The user launches a search thanks to the cliped form.
- 4 Google results are displayed in the updated cliplet.

Google result pages must then be detected for CWC to be able to clip results together with the navigation bar. This is the reason why a GoogleResultsPage screen class is created.

WHAT ARE THE GoogleResultsPage SCREEN CLASS DETECTION CRITERIA?

The GoogleResultsPage is detected using two detection criteria:

- The presence of Google result items in the page.
- The "Web" plain link in the upper left corner of the Google search page.

WHAT ARE THE BASIC STEPS FOR CREATING THE GoogleResultsPage SCREEN CLASS?

The basic steps for creating the GoogleResultsPage screen class are the following:

- 1 Send a keyword-based Google search request from the Web Browser.
- 2 Once results are displayed, right-click *close to* a Google result item.
- 3 Select an appropriate element node in the **DOM Tree**.
- 4 Generate the XPath corresponding to the previously selected element.
- 5 Create the new screen class from generated XPath.
- 6 Add the second criterion by copying-pasting the XPath_Web criterion.

To create the GoogleResultsPage screen class

- 1 In the Google search page displayed in the **Web Browser**, type in a search keyword (for example convertigo cliplet) in the search field.
- 2 Launch the Google search by clicking on the **Google Search** button.
- 3 Once results are displayed, right-click to the right of the first result:



Figure 2 - 36: Selection of a detection criterion for the GoogleResultsPage screen class



Searching for a detection criteria is an empirical process that requires trying different elements on the page to select the best suited for detecting a screen class.

The LI container is highlighted in the **DOM Tree**. This container contains all nodes modeling the first result returned by the Google search engine. It does not include any node that could possibly serve as strong differentiator for the screen class. We must now look in parent nodes to find one.

4 To do so, click on 🦙 to select the parent node.

An OL container is outlined in green.

This element is useless as regards detection because it does not contain any attribute or text content that could serve to generate an accurate XPath for the selected HTML element.



5 Click on 🦘 .

A DIV container is outlined in green. For the same reasons as previously mentioned, this node cannot be used to generate an accurate XPath.

6 Click on 🤧 .

Another DIV container is highlighted in green:



Figure 2 - 37: Searching for a better detection criterion

This node contains an id attribute, which can be used as unique attribute for generating an element's XPath, as mentioned in the definition of the previous screen class.

7 Right-click the id="res" attribute node and select Generate selection XPath (Enter) or select the attribute node with a left-click and press Enter:



Figure 2 - 38: Generation of XPath for the GoogleResultsPage screen class

The XPath expression of the selected node appears in the XPath Evaluator.



You can also right-click the parent DIV element and select **Generate** selection XPath (Enter) or select the DIV element with a left-click and press Enter: the XPath will intelligently be generated with the id attribute, since it exists.

- 8 Select the parent screen class, ClippedWebPages in the Projects View.
- 9 In the XPath Evaluator, click on the Create new child screen class from current

XPath icon 📳

The New Screen Class opens.

- 10 Click on Screen class, then on Next.
- 11 Type in the name of the new screen class (for example GoogleResultsPage).
- 12 Click on Finish.

The screen class now appears in the **Projects View** as an *inherited* screen class of the ClippedWebPages screen class:



Figure 2 - 39: GoogleResultsPage screen class and defined criterion

The criterion defined for the screen class is automatically generated and appears in the related **Criteria** folder.

13 Save your project by clicking on **[**] or by pressing Ctrl + S.

We now need to add to this screen class a second criterion: the XPath_Web criterion defined as second criterion for the GoogleSearchPage screen class. The criterion can simply be copied then pasted in the **Criteria** folder of the screen class.



A second detection criterion is added to the screen class definition to minimize the risk of "misdetection" when accessing a Google page with a Google logo, which could be an Image or Video Google page, and not a "Web" one.



To copy-paste a criterion from one screen class to another

1 In the **Projects View**, right-click on the XPath_Web criterion of the GoogleSearchPage screen class and select **Copy** in the contextual menu:



Figure 2 - 40: Copy criterion

2 Right-click on the GoogleResultsPage screen class then select Paste in the contextual menu:



Figure 2 - 41: Paste criterion

The criterion is added to the Criteria folder:



Figure 2 - 42: Pasted criterion in Criteria folder

3 Save your project by clicking on i or by pressing Ctrl + S.

The main screen classes are now created.



As mentioned before, Google servers automatically redirect Internet users to country-specific Google search pages, if a country-specific page has been created for their country. The following section addresses such a case.

CASE OF A COUNTRY-SPECIFIC GOOGLE SEARCH PAGE - DEFINITION OF THE GOOGLESearchPageFR SCREEN CLASS

When CWC connects to the www.google.com Web site, if a Google country-specific page exists, it automatically opens in the browser.

Country-specific Google homepages can be defined as standard Google search pages with a *redirecting* hypertext link in the lower right corner of pages. This link can be:

• a **Google.com in English** link in non-anglophone country specific pages:



Figure 2 - 43: Example of country-specific non-anglophone Google search page (France)

a Go to Google.com link in anglophone country-specific pages:



Figure 2 - 44: Example of country-specific anglophone Google search page (UK)

To detect country-specific pages, we will define a country-specific screen class (called



GoogleSearchPageFR in our project) having as detection criteria the redirecting link as well as criteria already defined for the GoogleSearchPage screen class.

The country-specific screen class can be defined as follows:

- it is a child screen class of the GoogleSearchPage screen class and, as such, inherits its criteria:
 - "Web" link in upper left corner of the Google page;
 - Google logo;
- it is characterized by the presence of a redirecting link (Google.com in English or Go to Google.com) in the lower right corner of the page.

To create a country-specific (GoogleSearchPageFR) screen class

1 In the country-specific Google search page displayed in the **Web Browser**, right-click on the redirecting link (**Google.com in English** or **Go to Google.com**).

The link is outlined in green in the **Web Browser** and its corresponding element is highlighted in green in the **DOM Tree**:



Figure 2 - 45: Selection of a detection criterion for the country-specific screen class

We will expand the A element node to see if it contains interesting attributes to generate the XPath corresponding to the link.

2 Expand the A element in the **DOM Tree** by clicking on \blacksquare :



Figure 2 - 46: Expanding an element to find relevant attributes in the DOM Tree for the country-specific screen class

Two nodes are associated with the A element: an href attribute node, which contains the URL address of the hypertext link, and a text node (Google.com in English or Go to Google.com), which represents the element text content.

The href attribute is not interesting as regards XPath generation because its value may often change. We will select only the text content and generate the XPath from it.

3 Right-click the text node T Google.com in English or T Go to Google.com and select

Generate selection XPath (Enter) or select it with a left-click and press Enter.

The XPath expression of the selected node appears in the XPath Evaluator:

xPath	//A[contains(text(),"Google.com in English")]
S. act	mestion and a section of the section of the
×Path	//A[contains(text(),"Go to Google.com")]
l'ann	and ghilds, some share a share and a share of the

Figure 2 - 47: XPath expression of country-specific redirecting link

- **4 Select the parent screen class**, GoogleSearchPage.
- 5 In the XPath Evaluator, click on the Create new child screen class from current XPath icon _____.

The New Screen Class opens.

- 6 Click on Screen class, then on **Next**.
- 7 Type in the name of the new screen class (for example GoogleSearchPageFR).
- 8 Click on Finish.

The screen class now appears in the **Projects View** as an *inherited* screen class of the GoogleSearchPage screen class:





Figure 2 - 48: GoogleSearchPageFR screen class in Projects View

The criterion previously defined for the screen class is automatically generated and appears in the related **Criteria** folder. Criteria inherited from the parent screen class appear greyed.

9 Save your project by clicking on is pressing Ctrl + S.

WHAT COMES NEXT?

Now that all screen classes have been defined for the project, we will:

1 *Create* Web clipping *extractions rules* associated with the GoogleSearchPage and GoogleResultsPage screen classes.

The extraction rules are defined as *Web clipper* rules executed on detection of these screen classes. They "clip" HTML parts of Web pages that we want displayed to users in HTML format (*Google logo* and *search form* for Google search page, *Google results* and *navigation bar* for Google results page).

2 Define a transaction, that is to say an automated navigation that automatically accesses the Google search page and initiate the clipping process based on detection of screen classes and execution of extraction rules.



The order in which extraction rules appear in the **Projects View** for a screen class is important, since HTML elements are clipped and presented in the generated cliplet following this order.

2.2.3 Creating Extraction Rules

This section shows how to create *Web clipper* extraction rules associated with previously defined screen classes.

HOW CAN A WEB CLIPPER EXTRACTION RULE BE DEFINED?

A Web clipper rule:

- clips from a Web page user-selected HTML elements (based on the XPath generated from this HTML element);
- checks that the header of the HTML page containing the clipped element is extracted as well (see Figure 2 - 96).

The following table describes the four *Web clipper* extraction rules needed in our sample project:

Table 2 - 2: Extraction rules

The extraction rule	Is associated with the screen class	And clips
WebClipImage	GoogleSearchPage	the Google logo
WebClipForm		the Google search form
WebClipResults	GoogleResultsPage	the Google results list
WebClipNavigationBar		the Google navigation bar

WHAT ARE THE BASIC STEPS FOR CREATING A WEB CLIPPER EXTRACTION RULE?

The logical process for creating a Web clipper extraction rule is the following:

- 1 Select in the **Web Browser** the element to be clipped.
- 2 Select in the **DOM Tree** the element node corresponding to this element.
- 3 Generate the corresponding Xpath.
- 4 *Launch* the **New Extraction Rule** wizard and choose the *Web Clipper* extraction rule template.

WEB CLIPPER EXTRACTION RULES ASSOCIATED WITH THE GoogleSearchPage SCREEN CLASS

The following procedure shows how to create a *Web clipper* extraction rule. The first two extraction rules to be created are WebClipForm and WebClipImage.

Both extraction rules are executed on detection of the GoogleSearchPage screen class following their order in the **Extraction rules** folder of the screen class.

This screen class is detected as soon as CWC connects to the www.google.com address (**HTTP server** parameter set for the connector (see *"To create a project and set a connector"* on page 2-6)) and accesses the Google search page.

Extraction rules associated with this screen class are therefore the first to be executed in the process. They clip the Google logo and search form and generate the corresponding cliplet, from which the user can launch a search.





If you're accessing the Google Web site from a country having a countryspecific Google homepage, the first screen class to be detected is GoogleSearchPageFR (see "Case of a Country-Specific Google Search Page - Definition of the GoogleSearchPageFR Screen Class" on page 2-25). No extraction rule is defined for the GoogleSearchPageFR screen class.

To create a Web Clipper extraction rule

1 Assuming that the **Web Browser** currently displays a Google search page, select the Google search field with a right-click in the **Web Browser**.

The search field is outlined in green in the **Web Browser** and the corresponding node is highlighted in green in the **DOM Tree**:



Figure 2 - 49: Selection of Google search field in Web Browser

2 Go up the **DOM Tree** by clicking on the **Parent node** icon with the FORM element node including the Google search field, links and buttons is highlighted:



Figure 2 - 50: Going up the DOM Tree to find an appropriate node for the Google search form

Selecting the FORM element in the **DOM Tree** outlines the whole search form in the **Web Browser**.

3 Expand the **DOM Tree** to select the most relevant node for generating Xpath corresponding to this HTML element.



Figure 2 - 51: Expanding an element to find relevant attributes in the DOM Tree

A name="f" attribute node appears in the tree. As mentionned before, the name attribute is a good candidate for generating Xpaths.

4 Right-click on the name="f" attribute and select Generate selection XPath (Enter) or select the attribute with a left-click and press Enter:



Figure 2 - 52: Generating XPath expression corresponding to Google search form

The XPath corresponding to the Google search form is displayed in the **xPath** field of the **XPath Evaluator**:



Figure 2 - 53: XPath expression on which the WebClipForm extraction rule will be based

You can also right-click the parent FORM element and select **Generate** selection XPath (Enter) or select the FORM element with a left-click and press Enter: the XPath will intelligently be generated with the name attribute, since it exists.

- 5 In the **Projects View**, select the GoogleSearchPage screen class, because the extraction rule applies to this screen class.
- 6 In the XPath Evaluator, click on the Create new extraction rule from current XPath



icon in the XPath Evaluator.

A New Extraction Rule wizard opens:

a .	
New Extraction Rule Please select an extraction rule template.	
Clipping extraction rules	۲
🗎 Add button 🛛 🔊 Add image 🛛 🔩 Add link	
The Add text 😥 Delete nodes 🕵 Wittipper	
Data extraction rules	۲
Katachment 🕵 HTTP headers 🕵 Node	
🕵 NodeList 🛛 🕵 Record 🛛 🕵 Table	
🕵 Text 🕵 Url 🗿 Variable	
(?) < Back Next >	Cancel

Figure 2 - 54: New Extraction Rule Wizard

- 7 Click on WebClipper.
- 8 Click on **Next**:

Informations	
Please enter a name for object.	
Name: WebClipForm	
? <back< td=""> Next > Einish</back<>	Cancel

Figure 2 - 55: Giving a name to the new extraction rule

9 In the Name field, enter a name (for example WebClipForm).

10 Click on **Finish**.

The new extraction rule appears in the **Extraction rules** folder of the GoogleSearchPage screen class and is inherited in the **Extraction rules** folder of the GoogleSearchPageFR screen class.



Figure 2 - 56: WebClipForm extraction rule in Extraction rules folders

Its properties are displayed in the Properties View:

Properties 🛛	
Property	Value
Configuration	
Attributes	[[src], [href], [background], [action], [cite], [cl
Commentaire	
Enable HTTP tunnel	disable
Enable parent extraction (true
Est active	true
Information	
Depth	n/a
Java class	com.twinsoft.convertigo.beans.common.WebCl
Name	WebClipForm
Priority	1249303588361
QName	/GoogleWebClippingSample/_data/cn/QQMIKUb
Туре	WebClipper
Selection	
XPath	//FORM[@name="f"]

Figure 2 - 57: Extraction rule properties

Default parameters are correct and do not need any setting.

11 Save your project by clicking on 🤖 or by pressing Ctrl + S.

We can see that an additional extraction rule, Alert, appears greyed in the **Extraction Rules** folder of the screen class:





Figure 2 - 58: Inherited and new extraction rules

This extraction rule is inherited from its parent Default_Screen_Class. It is used to handle javascript pop-ups.

Now that the first extraction rule has been defined for the GoogleSearchPage screen class, we need to define the second extraction rule: WebClipImage. It is executed on detection of the GoogleSearchPage screen class to clip the Google logo.

12 Right-click on the Google logo in the Google search page displayed in the Web Browser:



Figure 2 - 59: Selection of the Google logo to be clipped

13 Expand the **DOM Tree** to select the most relevant node for generating the XPath corresponding to this HTML element:



Figure 2 - 60: Attribute nodes of the HTML element to be clipped

An id attribute node appears in the tree. As mentioned when creating the GoogleSearchPage and GoogleResultsPage screen classes, this attribute always define an HTML element in a unique manner, so this is the best candidate for generating the XPath corresponding to the IMG element.



When present, the NAME attribute node is also a good candidate. On the contrary, avoid using attribute nodes such as *SRC* and *HREF*, which are never good candidates for generating XPath corresponding to detection criteria (their value is highly variable).

14 Right-click the id="logo" attribute node and select Generate selection XPath (Enter) or select it with a left-click and press Enter:



Figure 2 - 61: Generating XPath expression before creating the WebClipImage extraction rule

The XPath expression of the selected node appears in the **XPath Evaluator**.



You can also right-click the parent IMG element and select **Generate** selection XPath (Enter) or select the IMG element with a left-click and press Enter: the XPath will intelligently be generated with the id attribute, since it exists.



- 15 In the **Projects View**, click on the GoogleSearchPage screen class.
- 16 In the XPath Evaluator, click on the Create new extraction rule from current XPath



The New Extraction Rule wizard opens.

- 17 Click on WebClipper.
- 18 Click on Next.
- 19 In the Name field, enter a name (for example WebClipImage).
- 20 Click on Finish. The new extraction rule appears in the Extraction rules screen class folder:



Figure 2 - 62: WebClipImage extraction rule in Extraction rules folders

21 Save your project by clicking on 🤖 or by pressing Ctrl + S.

As mentioned in the *Note* preceding Table "*Extraction rules*" on page 2-29, HTML elements are clipped and displayed in the final cliplet following their order in this folder.

We want the generated cliplet to display the Google logo *on top* of the search form, so we need to sort extraction rules in this order: first WebClipImage then WebClipForm.

- 22 Select WebClipImage extraction rule in the folder.
- In the Projects View toolbar, click on the Increase the selected object(s) priority icon .

The WebClipImage object now appears above WebClipForm in the Extraction rules folder:


Figure 2 - 63: Increasing the WebClipImage priority

24 Save your project by clicking on 🔚 or by pressing Ctrl + S.

WEB CLIPPER EXTRACTION RULES ASSOCIATED WITH THE GOOGLEResultsPage SCREEN CLASS

The following procedure describes how to create the Web clipper extraction rules associated with the GoogleResultsPage screen class. It follows the same logic as the previous procedure (for a description of this logical process, see "*Creating Extraction Rules*" on page 2-28, beginning of section).

The two extraction rules we are about to create are called WebClipResults and WebClipNavigationBar. Both are associated with the GoogleResultsPage screen class.

After a search has been launched, results are displayed in a Google result page. This page is detected by CWC as a GoogleResultsPage screen class and extraction rules associated with this screen class are executed - they clip Google results together with the navigation bar and generate the corresponding cliplet (a light version of a Google results page).

To create the GoogleResultsPage Web clipper extraction rules

- 1 Assuming that the **Web Browser** currently displays a Google search page, type in a keyword (convertigo cliplet for example) in the Google search field.
- 2 Click on the **Google Search** button.

The Web Browser displays results.

3 Right-click to the right of the first result.





Figure 2 - 64: Selection of an XPath for Google result items

An LI element node is highlighted in green in the DOM Tree.

As mentioned before when defining the GoogleResultsPage screen class, this element does not contain any interesting attribute in terms of XPath generation. Moreover, we want to select here the container element that will be clipped by the extraction rule.

Go up the **DOM Tree** by clicking three times on the **Parent node** icon to find an appropriate element for Google results:



Figure 2 - 65: Going up the DOM Tree to select an appropriate node

The DIV element contains the whole results page. This is the HTML part that we want to clip.

5 Expand the **DOM Tree** to select the most relevant node for generating the Xpath corresponding to this element (see Figure 2 - 65).

An id node appears in the tree. As mentionned before, this attribute always defines an

HTML element in a unique manner, so it is the best candidate for generating the DIV element Xpath.

6 Right-click the attribute node id="res" and select Generate selection XPath (Enter) or select it with a left-click and press Enter:



Figure 2 - 66: Generating XPath expression before creating the WebClipResults extraction rule

The XPath expression (//DIV[@id="res") of the selected node appears in the **XPath Evaluator**.



You can also right-click the parent DIV element and select **Generate** selection XPath (Enter) or select the DIV element with a left-click and press Enter: the XPath will intelligently be generated with the id attribute, since it exists.

- 7 In the **Projects View**, click on the GoogleResultsPage screen class.
- 8 In the XPath Evaluator, click on the Create new extraction rule from current XPath

icon 🣴 .

The New Extraction Rule wizard opens.

- 9 Click on **WebClipper**.
- 10 Click on Next.
- 11 In the Name field, enter a name (for example WebClipResults).
- 12 Click on Finish.

The new extraction rule appears in the Extraction rules screen class folder:





Figure 2 - 67: WebClipResults extraction rule in Extraction rules folder

13 Save your project by clicking on 🕞 or by pressing Ctrl + S.

We now want to enable the user to navigate from a result page to another as if in a standard Google page. To this end, we will clip the Google navigation bar displayed at the bottom of Google results pages.

A fourth extraction rule is therefore created: WebClipNavigationBar. This extraction rule is executed on detection of a Google results page, and displayed as in standard Google results pages, i.e. below results. After having created it, we wil check that it appears at the proper place in the **Extraction rules** folder of the GoogleResultsPage screen class.

14 Assuming that the **Web Browser** currently displays a Google results page, right-click on an element of the Google navigation bar (for example the first letter, "G").

A SPAN node is highlighted in green in the **DOM Tree**:

🔷 🤿 🗢 🗢	🜀 🕤 💸 🗙 Address http://www.google.com 🜍 💥 🖆 🖄 🖄	1 /1
<u>і</u> — е ц 🔼	From Aboutos. See what mormation we have on	~
₩ • • • •	ConVertigo.com and share your knowledge.	_
	www.aboutus.org/ ConVertigo .com - <u>Cached</u> - <u>Similar</u>	
🗄 🗉 Attributes		
	1 <u>2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10</u> <u>Next</u>	
🚊 🗝 📕 Attributes		
🕀 🗖 Attributes 🗐	convertigo	
SPAN SPAN		
	Search within results - Language Tools - Search Heln -	
😟 🗉 🗢 TD	Dissatisfied2 Heln us improve - Try Google Experimental	
😟 💿 TD		
	Google Home - Advertising Programs - Business Solutions - Privacy -	=
🕀 🖷 TD 📖	About Google	_
		× ×
		2

Figure 2 - 68: Selection of an XPath for the Google navigation bar

This container includes only the first letter of the navigation bar. We will go up the node

tree to find a parent node including the whole bar.

15 Go up the **DOM Tree** by clicking four times on the **Parent node** icon **b** to find an appropriate node for the Google navigation bar.

The TABLE node seems a suitable element node since by selecting it, the whole navigation bar is outlined in green in the **Web Browser**:



Figure 2 - 69: Table node corresponding to the whole Google navigation bar

16 Expand the **DOM Tree** to select the most relevant node for generating the Xpath corresponding to this element.



Figure 2 - 70: Expanding an element to find relevant attributes in the DOM Tree

An id node appears in the tree. As mentionned, this attribute always defines an HTML element in a unique manner, so it is the best candidate for generating the TABLE element Xpath.

17 Right-click the id="nav" node and select Generate selection XPath (Enter) or select it with a left-click and press Enter:



Figure 2 - 71: Generating XPath corresponding to navigation bar

The XPath expression (//TABLE[@id="nav"]) of the selected node appears in the **XPath Evaluator**.





You can also right-click the parent TABLE element and select **Generate** selection XPath (Enter) or select the TABLE element with a left-click and press Enter: the XPath will intelligently be generated with the id attribute, since it exists.

- 18 In the **Projects View**, click on the GoogleResultsPage screen class.
- 19 In the XPath Evaluator, click on the Create new extraction rule from current XPath

icon 🣴

The New Extraction Rule wizard opens.

- 20 Click on WebClipper.
- 21 Click on Next.
- 22 In the Name field, enter a name (for example WebClipNavigationBar).
- 23 Click on Finish.

The new extraction rules appears in the Extraction rules screen class folder:



Figure 2 - 72: WebClipNavigationBar extraction rule in Extraction rules folder

24 Save your project by clicking on 🤖 or by pressing Ctrl + S.

Both extraction rules of the GoogleResultsPage screen class are sorted in the proper order: first results, then navigation bar.

WHAT COMES NEXT?

All required screen classes and extraction rules are now defined:

When CWC connects to the Web page corresponding to the HTTP Server parameter set as connector parameter (www.google.com displaying the Google search page), the GoogleSearchPage screen class is detected and associated extraction rules, WebClipImage and WebClipForm, are executed. HTML parts of the Google search page we want displayed to the user (Google logo and Google search form) are clipped and presented in a generated cliplet.

- After the user has launched a search from this search cliplet, the GoogleResultsPage screen class is detected and associated extraction rules, WebClipResults and WebClipNavigationBar, are executed. HTML parts of Google results page we want displayed to the user (Google results and Google navigation bar) are clipped and presented in an updated cliplet.
- As long as the user clicks on the navigation bar Next link, next Web screens are detected as GoogleResultsPage screen classes and corresponding extraction rules are executed.

We will now see if a transaction is needed in our project and when.

2.2.4 Defining a Transaction

This section shows how to create and define a transaction.

A transaction can be defined as an automated navigation based on:

- detection of defined screen classes;
- triggering of screen class handlers and execution of associated statements (data inputs, mouse clicks, checkbox checks, event creation, etc.).

The very first step of the navigation process is the connection to the Web site accessed through the **HTTP Server** parameter set for the connector (see *"To create a project and set a connector"* on page 2-6).

As regards this first connection, two situations are involved:

- you're accessing the www.google.com Web site from the USA or from a country not having a country-specific Google page - see "Definition of a Standard Connection Transaction" on page 2-43;
- you're accessing the www.google.com Web site from a country having a country-specific Google page - Google servers automatically redirect CWC to the "localized" version of the Google search engine - see "Definition of a Country-Specific Connection Transaction" on page 2-46.

In both cases, a connection transaction (for example GoGoogleCom) must be defined to connect to the Google Web site (as set as connector parameters when creating the project, see *"Creating a Project and Setting Connector Parameters"* on page 2-6).

If need be (that is, if a country specific page is accessed), the transaction must also redirect the connector to the standard Google search page (and allow CWC to detect the GoogleSearchPage screen class).

DEFINITION OF A STANDARD CONNECTION TRANSACTION



This sub-section applies only to users accessing the www.google.com Web site from a country not having a country-specific Google search page.

To define a standard transaction

In the Projects View, right-click on the connector name (for example



GoogleConnector) or on the Transactions folder.

2 Select New > Transaction:



Figure 2 - 73: Creating a new transaction

A New Transaction wizard opens:



Figure 2 - 74: New Transaction wizard

- 3 Select HTML Transaction.
- 4 Click on Next:

~		
Inform	nations	
Please	enter a name for object.	
Name:	New_HTML_transaction	
?	< Back Next > Finish	Cancel

Figure 2 - 75: Entering a new transaction name

- 5 Enter the transaction name (for example GoGoogleCom).
- 6 Click on Finish.

The new transaction appears in the Transactions folder of the Projects View:



Figure 2 - 76: New transaction in Projects View

7 Save your project by clicking on is pressing Ctrl + S.

A property differs between the DefaultWebClippingTransaction and the GoGoogleCom transaction: Maintains connector state.



The table below describes this property:

Table 2 - 3: Maintains connector state property

Value	Description
false	Each time the transaction is executed, the connector connects to the target Web page specifed in the Sub path property using the HTTP Server parameter set for the connector, and the Synchronizer property for synchronization.
true	The transaction uses the browser in the state it has been left by the preceding transaction execution.

In our project, we want CWI to connect to the www.google.com Web site (HTTP Server parameter set for the connector) each time the GoGoogleCom transaction is executed. We can leave this property set to its default value (false).

DEFINITION OF A COUNTRY-SPECIFIC CONNECTION TRANSACTION

When accessing the www.google.com from outside the USA or from a country having a country-specific Google page, a country-specific transaction must be created. It is similar to the previously defined transaction, but needs a screen class handler to be defined as well. This screen class handler handles the redirecting of CWC form the country-specific Google search page to the standard Google.com search page

HOW CAN THE GoGoogleCom TRANSACTION BE DEFINED?

This transaction can be defined as follows:

- it contains a screen class handler associated with the screen class identifying countryspecific Google homepages (GoogleSearchPageFR in our project, see "Case of a Country-Specific Google Search Page - Definition of the GoogleSearchPageFR Screen Class" on page 2-25).
- the screen class handler is triggered on detection of the country specific Google homepage screen class. This statement performs a "mouse click" statement on the redirecting link of the country-specific homepage (Google.com in English or Go to Google.com).

HOW CAN THE GOGOOGLECOM TRANSACTION BE DESCRIBED?

In the context of our sample project, this transaction can be summed up as follows:

- 1 CWC accesses the www.google.com Web site.
- **2** Google servers automatically redirect CWC to the country-specific Google search page.
- 3 The country-specific version of the Google homepage is detected as a country-specific screen class (for example GoogleSearchPageFR).
- 4 On detection of the country-specific screen class (GoogleSearchPageFR), the corresponding country-specific screen class handler (onGoogleSearchPageFREntry) is triggered.
- 5 The statement associated with the screen class handler ("click on the redirecting link") is performed.

- **6** CWC is automatically redirected to the standard Google search page in English (detected as a GoogleSearchPage screen class).
- **7** The transaction stops, extracting data from this page and presenting the cliplet to the user.

The Web clipping automatic process starts. A search can be launched by the user from the generated cliplet. Screen classes are then automatically detected and data automatically clipped (as explained in the previous section (page 2-42)).



For more information on screen class handlers and statements, see "Screen class handler" on page 1-8 and see "Statement" on page 1-9.

The following procedure shows how to create the country-specific transaction, screen class handler and statement previously identified.

To define a country-specific transaction

- 1 In the **Projects View**, right-click on the connector name (for example GoogleConnector) or on the **Transactions** folder.
- 2 Select New > Transaction:



Figure 2 - 77: Creating a new transaction

A New Transaction wizard opens:

A	
New Transaction	
Please select a transaction template.	
() HTML transaction	
Contraction Contraction	Cancel

Figure 2 - 78: New Transaction wizard



- 3 Select HTML Transaction.
- 4 Click on Next:

Informations
Please enter a name for object.
Name: New_HTML_transaction
(2) < Back Next > Finish Cancel

Figure 2 - 79: Entering a new transaction name

5 Enter the transaction name (for example GoGoogleCom).

6 Click on Finish.

The new transaction appears in the Transactions folder of the Projects View:



Figure 2 - 80: New transaction in Projects View

7 Save your project by clicking on 🤖 or by pressing Ctrl + S.

A property differs between the DefaultWebClippingTransaction and the GoGoogleCom transaction: Maintains connector state.

The table below describes this property:

Table 2 - 4: Maintains connector state property

Value	Description
false	Each time the transaction is executed, the connector connects to the target Web page specifed in the Sub path property using the HTTP Server parameter set for the connector, and the Synchronizer property for synchronization.
true	The transaction uses the browser in the state it has been left by the preceding transaction execution.

In our project, we want CWI to connect to the www.google.com Web site (HTTP Server parameter set for the connector) each time the GoGoogleCom transaction is executed. We can leave this property set to its default value (false).

We will now create the screen class handler triggered on detection of the country-specific screen class (GoogleSearchPageFR). A statement will then be associated with this screen class handler: "click on the redirecting link".

To create a country-specific screen class handler

- 1 Right-click on the transaction name (for example GoGoogleCom).
- 2 Select **New > Handler** in the contextual menu.

A New transaction handler window opens:



Figure 2 - 81: New transaction handler window

This window is divided into:

- a first part dedicated to screen class handlers (with three checkboxes and a dropdown menu);
- a second part dedicated to other types of handlers (with four checkboxes).



The table below describes these elements:

Window I	Element	Description
Screen class handler settings <i>Checkboxes</i>	Screen class transaction handler	Check this box if you want to create a screen class handler (as opposed to other handlers available in Convertigo) that wil be triggered on screen class detection.
	Entry handler	Check this box if the screen class handler must be invoked when accessing the screen class. An entry screen class handler basically handles the following actions: access Web page, execute statements, exit to next Web page.
	Exit handler	Check this box if the screen class handler must be invoked when exiting the screen class. An exit screen class handler basically handles the following actions: access Web page, execute statements, extract data following extraction rules, exit to next Web page.
Screen class handler settings Drop-down menu		Displays the list of screen classes available in the project.
Other handlers settings Checkboxes	Start of transaction	Check this box if you want to create a handler that will be triggered when starting the transaction.
	XML generation	Check this box if you want to create a handler that will be triggered at the end of the transaction (once the XML output has been generated).
	Default transaction entry handler	Check this box to create a default transaction entry handler.
	Default transaction exit handler	Check this box to create a default transaction exit handler.

Table 2 - 5: New transaction handler window description

The screen class handler we are about to create is triggered when accessing the country-specific Google search page.

It can be defined as follows:

- this is a screen class transaction handler, meaning that all the screen class handler settings of the New transaction handler window (see Figure 2 - 81) must be set;
- this is an *entry* handler, because no data has to be extracted from this page;
- it is invoked on detection of a country-specific screen class (for example GoogleSearchPageFR).

We will now set the scren class handler parameters:

- 3 Check the **Screen class transaction handler** checkbox.
- In the ScreenClass drop-down menu, select the country-specific screenc class (for example GoogleSearchPageFR).
- 5 Check the Entry handler checkbox:

New transaction handler
Screenclass transaction handler
ScreenClass :
GoogleSearchPageFR 🗸
Entry handler
Exit handler
Start of transaction
XML generation
Default transaction entry handler
Default transaction exit handler
OK Cancel

Figure 2 - 82: ongoogleSearchPageFREntry settings

6 Click on OK.

The country-specific screen class handler (for example ongoogleSearchPageFREntry) appears in the **Functions** folder of the GoGoogleCom transaction of the **Projects View**:



Figure 2 - 83: New entry screen class handler in the Projects View

Note the left to right yellow arrow \Rightarrow identifying *entry* screen class handlers.

We now need to define the statement that performs the required action on detection of the country-specific screen class: "click on the redirecting link".

To this end, we will use the same XPath as the one used to create the country-specific screen class, which corresponds to the link.

To create a statement

1 Assuming that the **Web Browser** displays a country-specific Google search page, right-click on the redirecting link (**Google.com in English** or **Go to Google.com**).

The link is outlined in green in the **Web Browser** and its corresponding element is highlighted in green in the **DOM Tree**:





Figure 2 - 84: Selection of a detection criterion for the GoogleSearchPageFR screen class

We will expand the A element node to see if it contains interesting attributes to generate the XPath corresponding to the link.



Figure 2 - 85: Expanding an element to find relevant attributes in the DOM Tree

Two nodes are associated with the A element: an href attribute node, which contains the URL address of the hypertext link, and a text node (Google.com in English or Go to Google.com), which represents the element content.

The href attribute is not so interesting as regards XPath generation because its value may often change. We will select the text content only and generate the XPath from it.

3 Right-click the text node Transferred Google.com in English or Transferred Google.com and select

Generate selection XPath (Enter) or select it with a left-click and press Enter:

The XPath expression of the selected node appears in the XPath Evaluator:



Figure 2 - 86: XPath expression of country-specific redirecting link

- 4 Select the country-specific screen class handler object (onGoogleSearchPageFREntry) in the **Projects View**.
- 5 In the XPath Evaluator, click on the Create new statement from current XPath icon

, which is activated because a suitable handler or container is selected in the Projects view.

A New Statement wizard opens.

6 Click on **Mouse action** (this statement emulates mouse clicks):



Figure 2 - 87: New Statement wizard - Mouse action

- 7 Click on Next.
- 8 Leave the statement name untouched or enter a new name in the Name field: for



example clickGoogleCom.



If the statement name is several words long, separate each word with an underscore instead of a blank space. Otherwise, an error message will appear in the Informations part of the window (see Figure 2 - 89).



Figure 2 - 88: Proper statement name

Informations	
Name must be normalized. Don't start with number and don't use non ASCII caracters.	
Name: click Google Com	
and a second	and the second second

Figure 2 - 89: Improper statement name

9 Click on Finish.

The new statement appears in the **Projects View**:



Figure 2 - 90: New Mouse click statement on entry screen class handler

The statement's Synchronisation property is set by default to the following value:

🖃 Expert	
Synchronisation	Document Completed:1 timeout:60000 🛛 🧹
Information	and the second state of the second state of

Figure 2 - 91: clickGoogleCom statement - Synchronization value

This property answers the following question: "Once the click has been performed, when can the transaction resume (for example once the Google.com page has has been loaded), and what is the allowed maximum waiting time?".

10 In the **Properties View**, click on the value of the **Synchronisation** property.

11 Click on .

A Trigger Editor window opens:

Trigger editor	
Type of synchronizer Timeout (ms)	Document completed
This synchronizer wait	for a number of document completed.
Number of document of	completed 1
	OK Cancel

Figure 2 - 92: Trigger editor window

Three types of synchronizer are available:

Table 2 - 6: Synchronizer types

Synchronizer type	Description
Document completed	Transaction continues running once a number of document have been successfully loaded. The number of documents must be set in the Number of document completed field of the window: This synchronizer wait for a number of document completed. Number of document completed 1
Xpath	Transaction continues running once an Xpath has been found. The XPath must be set in the Waiting for XPath field: This synchronizer wait while the xpath Waiting for Xpath
Wait time	Transaction continues running after the specified wait time has been reached. With this parameter, you can also decide to monitor any DOM change while waiting: Check this to monitor any DOM changes while waiting. (Can cause heavy CPU load)



Table 2 - 6: Synchronizer types

Synchronizer type	Description
Screen class	Transaction continues running once one of the specified screen classes has been reached. The waited screen classes must be selected in the Waiting for Screen Classes list:
	This synchronizer waits for one of the selected ScreenClasses defined here to be detected. You can select multiple screen classes by holding the Ctrl key while selecting the screen class with the mouse
	Waiting for Screen Classes GenericWebPage GoogleResultsPage GoogleSearchPage GoogleSearchPageER GoogleSearchPageUK

- 12 Leave default values unchanged.
- 13 Click on OK.
- **14** Save your project by clicking on in by pressing Ctrl + S.

The actions to be performed on detection of the googleSearchPageFR screen class are now defined.

We must inform the transaction that once the screen class handler statement has been executed, a new criterion match detection must be carried out on the next accessed Web page without extracting data.

This is done through the **Result** entry screen class property, which can take the following values:

The value	Means that the application will
 blank>	stop the transaction and extract data from last detected screen class using extraction rules
continue	stop the transaction and extract data from last detected screen class using extraction rules.
redetect	redetect a new screen class without extracting data. This is the default value, which corresponds to what the transaction should do in our case.
skip	stop the transaction without extracting data from last detected screen class.

Table 2 - 1	7: Result	property	values for	or entry screer	l class	handlers
-------------	-----------	----------	------------	-----------------	---------	----------

This property is set by default to redetect. You can leave it as is.

The onGoogleSearchPageFREntry screen class handler is now properly set together with the required statement.



No handler needs to be created for the GoogleSearchPage screen class, because we only want the transaction to stop when detecting this screen class and extract data, which is implied by the "return redetect" process of the previous handler.

WHAT COMES NEXT?

Now that the transaction has is created, test it by executing it to see if it gives expected results.

2.2.5 Executing a Transaction

The Web clipping project is now set up.

You can execute the transaction either:

- by executing it from the Studio using the Execute command;
- by calling a properly formatted URL from a Web browser to access a test platform included in the project.

To execute the transaction from the Studio

- 1 In the **Projects View**, right-click on the transaction (for example GoGoogleCom).
- 2 Select Execute.

The transaction starts. The successive steps of the transaction (connect to www.google.com then click on the **Google.com in English** link and access the standard Google search engine, if applicable) are executed; you can see them in real time in the **Connector View** of the studio.

The HTML content of extracted (i.e. clipped) data appears in the **XML** tab of the **Output** tab of the **Connector View**:



Figure 2 - 93: XML output of HTML elements clipped from Google search page



The last detected screen class is displayed in the lower left corner of the **Connector View**:



Figure 2 - 94: Last detected screen class

When a screen class is detected, corresponding extraction rules are executed. As regards the GoogleSearchPage screen class, these extraction rules are the following:

- WebClipImage clips the Google logo;
- WebClipForm clips the Google search form.

The HTML code of clipped elements appear in the XML tab:



Figure 2 - 95: HTML code of clipped Google logo and Google search form

The Google search page HTML header also appears in the output:



Figure 2 - 96: HTML page header in XML output

The header is automatically extracted by the *Web clipper* extraction rule. In this example, only one header is present because clipped elements belong to the same HTML page (Google search page).

This test shows that :

- The GoogleSearchPage screen class has been correctly detected.
- Corresponding extraction rules have been performed in consequence.

Data have been extracted as expected - the test is conclusive.

To test the transaction using the test platform

- 1 Launch a standard Web browser.
- 2 In the URL address field, type in the URL in the following format:

http://<HostName>:<ConvertigoPortNumber>/convertigo/projects/
<ProjectName>

For example, in our project:

- HostName = localhost (default server for studio);
- ConvertigoPortNumber = 18080 (default port for studio);
- ProjectName = sample_doc_CWC;

For example, in a browser URL address bar:



Figure 2 - 97: Convertigo test platform URL

The test platform opens:



🖉 Index - Windows Internet Explo	rer			
🔆 🔆 🗸 🔀 http://localhost:18080	/convertigo/projects/sample_doc_C	wc/ 🔽 🗲 🗙 😡	gle	P -
🚖 🏟 📈 Index		🙆 • 6	🛯 👻 🖶 🝷 🔂 Page 👻 🎯 O	utils 🕶 🎇
CONVERTIGO ENTERPRISE MASHU sample_doc_CWC project Web Clipping project GoogleConnector connect	JP SERVER			
Cliplet name DefaultWebClippingTransaction	Add to Google netvibes	Parameters	Comment	
GoGoogleCom_	Google netvibes 			
				~
Terminé		🧐 Intra	net local 🔍 100	% 🔹 🔐

Figure 2 - 98: Test platform page

It displays:

- in a first table:
 - the project name (in our example, sample_doc_CWC);
 - the project type;
- in a second table:
 - the connector defined for the project (in our example, GoogleConnector);
 - all transactions defined for the connector (in our example, DefaultWebClippingTransaction, GoGoogleCom).
- **3** Click on the GoGoogleCom link.

The transaction starts. The **Connector Editor** of the CWI Studio shows the successive steps of the transaction being executed in real time.

The HTML content of extracted (i.e. clipped) data appear in an **Execution result** window in the test platform:

🖉 Index - Windows Internet F	xplorer	
Goo ← I http://localhost:	18080/convertigo/projects/sample_doc_CWC/# 🛛 🖌 🖌 Google	P -
🚖 🏟 🔀 Index	🚹 T 🔝 T 🖶 T 🛃 Page 🕇	r 🎯 Outils 🔹 🎇
		^
	Execution result	ω
	xml version="1.0" encoding="ISO-8859-1"?	<u>^</u>
convertigo	<document 1"="" connector="GoogleConnector" context="studio_sampl</th><th>.e_doc_C</th></tr><tr><th>ENTERPRISE MAS</th><th><pre><HEAD twsid="></document>	="conte
	<pre><style twsid="5"></style></pre>	

Figure 2 - 99: XML output of HTML elements clipped from Google search page

As mentioned in the previous procedure (see *"To execute the transaction from the Studio"* on page 2-57), the XML output contains:

- the header of the page from which data have been extracted (here, one header only because elements have been clipped on same HTML page);
- the HTML code corresponding to the Google logo;
- the HTML code corresponding to the Google search form.





Figure 2 - 100: HTML code of clipped elements

Data have therefore been extracted as expected - the test is conclusive.

We now need to associate the transaction with a style sheet, so as to perform an XSL transformation of the XML output into an HTML page (see *"Presenting Data with Convertigo Web Clipper"* on page 3-1).



The previous chapter describes how to clip data into a simple XML output document.

This chapter introduces the notion of XSL transformation. It describes how to transform XML data into an HTML document for display purpose using XSL style sheets.

- Presenting Data
- Editing an XSL Style Sheet

3.1 **Presenting Data**

To be able to present data in HTML format, a style sheet in XSL format must be associated with the transaction and used to process the resulting XML output.

In CWC, a style sheet is created by default when creating a project: DoNothing. It is stored in the **Sheets** folder of the Default_Screen_Class screen class. All defined screen classes therefore inherits it.

- The DoNothing Style Sheet
- Associating the DoNothing Style Sheet with Transactions

3.1.1 The DoNothing Style Sheet

The DoNothing style sheet is associated with the default screen class, Default_Screen_Class:



Figure 3 - 1: DoNothing style sheet

It "does nothing" in the sense that it does not process XML nodes in any specific way. Clipped data are initially extracted in HTML format - the DoNothing style only recopies these HTML elements as they are. When associating the transaction with the DoNothing style sheet, clipped elements just appear as they do in source HTML pages.





The DoNothing style sheet that appears in the **Projecs View** is a CWC object. It is associated with an XSL file via its **URL** property: donothing.xsl.

Screen classes previously defined (see "Defining Screen Classes" on page 2-10) are child screen classes of the Default_Screen_Class.

As such, they inherit the DoNothing style sheet:



Figure 3 - 2: Inherited DoNothing style sheet

3.1.2 Associating the DoNothing Style Sheet with Transactions

We will now associate the DoNothing style sheet with the transaction (for example GoGoogleCom), through the **Stylesheet** transaction property.

To associate a style sheet with a transaction

1 Select the transaction with a left-click.

The Properties View is updated:

Properties 🛛	
Property	Value
📕 Expert	
Call the biller	false
Character set	ISO-8859-1
Client cache for response	false
Handles cookies	true
HTTP parameters	[[Content-Type, application/x-www-form-urlen
Include certificate group	false
Maintains connector state	false
Public method	false
Request template	
Response life time	
Synchronizer	Document Completed:1 timeout:60000
Information	
Depth	n/a
Java class	com.twinsoft.convertigo.beans.transactions.H
Name	GoGoogleCom
Priority	0
QName	/sample_doc_CWC/_data/cn/QQMIKUb/tr/2Kg
Туре	HTML transaction
Properties	
Comment	
Response delay	60
Style sheet	None
Sub path	
XML attributes to include	[Z@1034558

Figure 3 - 3: Transaction properties

The Style Sheet property can take three values:

Table 3 - 1: S	yle Sheet transaction	property
----------------	-----------------------	----------

Style Sheet property value	Description
None	Does not process with XSLT. Usually set for Web services (SOAP or REST), as plain XML data is then to be returned.
From transaction	Uses the XSL style sheet attached to this transaction.
From last detected screen class	Uses XSL style sheet attached to the last detected screen class.

In our case, we want the style sheet attached to detected screen classes to be processed. We must set the **Style Sheet** property to **From last detected screen class**.

- 2 Click on the value of the Style Sheet property.
- 3 Select **From last detected screen class** in the drop-down menu:



Figure 3 - 4: Setting the Style Sheet property to From last detected screen class

4 Save your project by clicking on is pressing Ctrl + S.

We will now re-test the transaction to check that the XSL transformation gives expected results.

To re-test the transaction

1 Repeat steps 1 and 2 of procedure *"To execute the transaction from the Studio"* on page 2 - 57 OR repeat steps 1 to 3 of procedure *"To test the transaction using the test platform"* on page 2 - 59.

If the transaction is executed from the Studio, the result of the XSL transformation (i.e. the generated cliplet) appears in the **Browser** tab of the **Output** tab of the **Connector View**:



XML Browser	
Google Search I'm Feeling Lucky	X

Figure 3 - 5: Cliplet based on clipped HTML elements

If the transaction is executed from the test platform, it appears in the **Execution result** window of the test platform:

🖉 Index - Windows Internet Explorer			
GO - 🛛 http://localhost:18080/con	vertigo/projects/sample_doc_CWC/#	Google	₽ -
🚖 🛠 🛃 Index		🟠 • 🗟 - 🖶 • 🗄	🎖 Page 🔻 🍈 Outils 👻 🎽
Convertigo ENTERPRISE MASHUP Sample_doc_CWC project Web Clipping project GoogleConnector connector Cliplet name DefaultWebClippingTransaction. GoGoogleCom	Execution result Google Google Se Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle Coogle	arch	Advanced Search Language Tools
Using MSXML 6		S Intranet local	🔍 100% 🔻 🛒

Figure 3 - 6: XML output in the Execution result window of the test platform

In both cases, the Google logo and search form appear off-centered (see Figure 3 - 5 or see Figure 3 - 6) whereas they appear centered in the original Google page. Image centering is represented in the **DOM Tree** by the CENTER element node, which is a *parent* element of IMG (element corresponding to the Google logo):



Figure 3 - 7: Element node managing Google logo centering

Extracting the whole CENTER element with the Web clipper extraction rule is inappropriate because the element contains unwanted HTML elements. Instead, we will use the extraction rule **Enable parent extraction of the cliplet** property, which allows the extraction rule to extract the full parent tree of the clipped elements when set to true.

To enable the parent extraction of clipped elements

1 In the **Projects View**, select the WebClipImage extraction rule in the **Extraction rules** folder of the GoogleSearchPage screen class:



Figure 3 - 8: Selection of extraction rule in Projects View

The Properties View is updated:



Properties 🛛	🔁 🛟 💀 🗸 🗖 🗖
Property	Value
Configuration	
Attributes	[[src], [href], [background], [action], [cite], [cl
Comment	
Enable HTTP tunnel	disable
Enable parent extraction of t	false
Is active	true
📃 Information	
Depth	n/a
Java class	com.twinsoft.convertigo.beans.common.WebC
Name	WebClipImage
Priority	1261582273667
QName	/sample_doc_CWC/_data/cn/QQMIKUb/sc/pVjl
Туре	WebClipper
Selection	
XPath	//IMG[@id="logo"]

Figure 3 - 9: Extraction rule properties

2 Set the Enable parent extraction of the cliplet property to true:

Commenc		Lav
Enable HTTP tunnel	disable	:0
Enable parent extraction of the clipplet	false 💌	10
Is active	true	!c
Information	false	!c
Depth	n/a	! c/
va class	com the contribution beams common	

Figure 3 - 10: Setting Enable paretn extraction of the cliplet property to true

- 3 Save your project by clicking on 📳 or by pressing Ctrl + S.
- 4 Repeat the procedure for the WebClipForm extraction rule.

When executing the transaction again, clipped elements appear centered:

• in the Browser tab of the Output tab of the Connector View:

XML Browser		
	Google™	<
	Advanced Search Language Tools Google Search I'm Feeling Lucky	<

Figure 3 - 11: Cliplet in Browser tab of Studio with parent extraction enabled

• in the **Execution window** of the test platform:

🖉 Index - Windows Internet Explore	r			
	onvertigo/projects/sample_doc_CWC/#		Google 🖌 🖌	P •
🚖 🕸 🛃 Index			🟠 • 🗟 · 🖶	🔹 📑 Page 👻 🍈 Outils 👻 🎇
	Execution result			8
CONVERTISO ENTERPRISE MASHUP		Go	ogle™	
sample_doc_CWC project Web Clipping project		Google Search	I'm Feeling Lucky	Advanced Search Language Tools
GoogleConnector connector				
DefaultWebClippingTransaction	Google • netvibe:	S		
GoGoogleCom	🕂 Google 💽 netvibe	S		
Using MSXML 6			🧐 Intranet local	🔍 100% 🔹 💡

Figure 3 - 12: Cliplet in Execution result window of test platform with parent extractio enabled

• in the XML tab of the Output tab of the Connector View, through the adding of a CENTER tag in the code:





Figure 3 - 13: Center tag added to the code after parent extraction

NOTE ON THE DONOTHING STYLE SHEET

The DoNothing style sheet also includes a set of standard browser icons represented by a pull-down tab. This set of icons appears hidden in the upper left corner of the result cliplet:



Figure 3 - 14: Hidden set of icons

This set of icons is displayed when pointing the mouse cursor over it:



Figure 3 - 15: Set of icons displayed when pointing mouse cursor over it

The table below describes this set of icons:

Table 3 - 2: Execution	result window icons
------------------------	---------------------

lcon	Description
\$	<i>Refresh</i> icon. Refreshes current window. Click on this icon to see if changes in the project have been correctly taken into account (for example after having modified the Enable parent extraction from cliplet property, see <i>"To</i> <i>enable the parent extraction of clipped elements"</i> on page 3-5).
G	<i>Restart</i> icon. Restarts cliplet with its original transaction.
G	<i>Backward</i> icon. Displays previous page in the cliplet history.
Ð	<i>Forward</i> icon. Displays next page in the cliplet history.

From now on, the user can launch a Google search from the cliplet as if from a standard Google search page.

- 5 Type in convertigo in the search form of the **Execution result** window of the test platform.
- 6 Click on the **Google Search** button.

Manual actions (inputing a keyword and clicking on a button) performed in the cliplet are reproduced by Convertigo in the Google search engine. The keyword entered in the search is read and sent to the Google search engine, which processes it.

Once results are returned by the Google search engine, the GoogleResultsPage screen class is detected and associated extraction rules (WebClipResults and WebClipNavigationBar) are executed.

Results are clipped together with the navigation bar and a new cliplet is generated based on these elements:





Figure 3 - 16: Google results in updated cliplet



Figure 3 - 17: Execution window - Clipped results and navigation bar


The navigation bar displayed in the **Execution result** window of the test platform is a lighter version of the Google navigation bar. It does not contain images, which are represented by specific elements not selected by the XPath generated for the navigation bar Web Clipper extraction rule.

The user can navigate through results as if in a standard Google page.

7 Click on Next.

A second results page is displayed:



Figure 3 - 18: Execution result window - second result page

8 Click on a link.

The corresponding Web site opens.

The accessed Web page is detected by CWC as a GenericWebPage screen class, since no criterion (other than the one defined for the GenericWebPage screen class, see "Criterion" on page 1-6) matches.

The user can navigate freely through this Web site but throughout Convertigo clipping the whole content of each page, since specific Web Clipper extraction rules are defined only for Google search and result pages. The user has lost access to the Google results page.

The only ways a user can go back to results page are by using unconvenient processes, such as:

- restarting the cliplet, re-launching the search and navigating to the page, or
- going backward in the cliplet history as many time as required to access the results page.



WHAT COMES NEXT?

What could be interesting would be to open target Web sites in new tabs of the browser. The user would then be able to visit Web sites while keeping Google results accessible in a tab and without accessing them troughout Convertigo clipping. Accessed pages would then open faster.

To do so, we need to create a new XSL style sheet and edit it. .

3.2 Editing an XSL Style Sheet

As mentioned before, the standard style sheet used for web clipping XSL transformation is the DoNothing style sheet (see "The DoNothing Style Sheet" on page 3-1). This style sheet is a Convertigo object, *physically* represented in the **Project Explorer** by the donothing.xsl file:



Figure 3 - 19: donothing.xsl file in Project Explorer

Should the user have any specific need in terms of data presentation (for example, if he wants open Google results to open in new tabs, see *"To create and edit a new XSL file"* on page 3-13), a specific style sheet in XSL format can be defined. The user can edit it to meet his/her needs, then associate it to the relevant screen class.

In our case, we want Web sites accessed from the Google results page to open in new tabs. The style sheet we want to create and edit should therefore be associated with the GoogleResultsPage screen class.

In CWC, creating a new style sheet and editing it means:

- 1 *Creating* a **Sheet** object in the **Projects View**.
- 2 *Creating* the corresponding XSL file in the **Project Explorer**.
- 3 Editing the XSL structure of the file in an Editor.

The following procedure describes how to implement these three steps.

To create and edit a new XSL file

We will first create in the **Sheets** folder of the GoogleResultsPage screen class a new **Sheet** object called results. The results stylesheet should be an edited copy of the DoNothing stylesheet, so that it can keep the same functionnalities and automatic processes.

To this end, we will duplicate the donothing.xsl file and rename it results.xsl. The results.xsl will eventually be edited to reflect our need (open Web sites in new tabs).

- 1 In the **Projects View**, right-click on the screen class (GoogleResultsPage) or on the **Sheets** folder of GoogleResultsPage screen class.
- 2 Select New > Sheet.

A New Sheet wizard opens:

a	
New Sheet	
Please select a sheet template.	
XSL style sheet	
(2) < Back	Cancel

Figure 3 - 20: New Sheet wizard

- 3 Click on XSL style sheet.
- 4 Click on **Next**:



Figure 3 - 21: Entering a name for the new style sheet



- 5 Enter a name in the **Name** field (for example results).
- 6 Click on Finish.

In the screen class **Sheets** folder, the inherited DoNothing style sheet object is replaced by the newly created style sheet, results:



Figure 3 - 22: New results style sheet in Projects View

Now that the style sheet object has been created, we need to:

- Specify to which XSL file the results style sheet refers, through the style sheet URL property.
- Create the corresponding XSL file in the **Project Explorer**, results.xsl.
- 7 Select the results style sheet with a left-click. The **Properties View** is updated:

Properties 🛛		
Property	Value	
📃 Information		
Depth	n/a	
Java class	com.twinsoft.convertigo.beans.core.Sheet	
Name	results	
Priority	0	
QName	/sample_doc_CWC/_data/cn/QQMIKUb/sc/pVjl	
Туре	XSL style sheet	
Properties		
Browser	*	
Comment		
URL		

Figure 3 - 23: Style sheet properties

8 Click on the empty value of the **URL** property.

The field is highlighted then a cursor appears in the empty field:



Figure 3 - 24: URL style sheet property

- 9 Type in results.xsl.
- **10** Save your project by clicking on **[**] or by pressing Ctrl + S.

The results.xsl doest not exist in the files of the project yet. We will create it in the **Projects Explorer**.

11 Click on the **Project Explorer** tab.

The project files tree structure appears:

Projects 🕒 Project Explorer 🙁	
demo_legacyCRM	
i demo_SalesForce	
demo_usDirectory	
B-1 → sample_doc_CWC	
🕀 🗁 _data	
🗁 🗁 _private	
🗈 🗁 img	
🖻 🗁 script	
- 🗁 Traces	
donothing.xsl	
── 🕅 error_fr.xsl	
🛛 🕅 error.xsl	
📄 index.jsp	
- 📄 netvibes.xhtml	
🔤 🔀 sample_doc_CWC.wsdl	
🔤 🕅 sample_doc_CWC.xml	
🔤 🕅 sample_doc_CWC.xsd	

Figure 3 - 25: Project tree structure in Project Explorer

To create the results.xsl file, we will duplicate the donothing.xsl style sheet because it initially processes the XML output of any Web clipping transaction.

- **12** Select donothing.xsl with a left-click.
- 13 Copy-paste the file by pressing Ctrl+C then Ctrl+V or right-click on the donothing.xsl file, then select Copy, and right-click on the sample_doc_CWC folder, then select Paste.
- 14 In the **Name conflict** window that opens, type in the name of the new style sheet: results.xsl:





Figure 3 - 26: Name conflict window

The results.xsl file is now created in the **Project Explorer**:

Projects Project Explorer	×	🕒 😫 🏱	- 0
emo_legacyCRM			
- i demo_SalesForce			
- demo_usDirectory			
😑 🥁 sample_doc_CWC			
🕀 🗁 _data			
🕀 🗁 img			
🕀 🗁 script			
- Contraces			
- 📄 convertigo.gadget			
- 🗴 donothing.xsl			
error_fr.xsl			
error.xsl			
- 📄 index.jsp			
- netvibes.xhtml			
X results.xsl			
X sample_doc_CWC.ws	dl		
- 🖹 sample_doc_CWC.xm	E.		
sample_doc_CWC.xsc	ł		

Figure 3 - 27: New style sheet in Project Explorer

We will now edit this XSL file.

15 Double-click on results.xsl.



To edit a style sheet, you can also right-click on it in the **Projects View** and select **Edit**.

The file opens in an Eclipse XML Editor:



Figure 3 - 28: results.xsl style sheet in Editor

The file includes a template rule which matches on any node and attribute and copies - using the <xsl:copy> transformation element - these nodes and attributes in the HTML output:





The XML resulting from the transaction being already in HTML format, nodes can be recopied as they are without generating specific HTML content.

We will first copy this template rule, then modify it so that it matches on the XPath corresponding to result links. It is indeed on these links that the click we want to modify is performed. It is modelized in HTML by the A element.

16 Copy the template rule by highlighting it and pressing Ctrl+C.



- 17 Place the cursor anywhere in the file before the ending </xsl:stylesheet> tag and outside template rules.
- 18 Paste the template rule by pressing Ctrl+V.
- **19** Display the **Connector View** by selecting the sample_doc_CWC GoogleConnector tab.
- 20 Assuming that the **Connector View** currently displays Google results, right-click on a link:



Figure 3 - 30: Selecting an HTML element in the Connector View (result link)

The link is outlined in green in the **Connector View** and the corresponding node (A element) is highlighted in green in the **DOM Tree**.



Other elements than the A element can be highlighted in the **DOM Tree** depending on where you click exactly in the link. We are generating the Xpath of the element that we want to modify: the A HTML element. If this element is not highlighted in green, go up or down the **DOM Tree** and select it.

The A element node contains a class attribute. We will generate the XPath from this attribute.

21 Right-click the attribute node class="1" and select Generate selection XPath (Enter) or select the attribute node with a left-click and press Enter.



Figure 3 - 31: Selection of node and generation of XPath

The XPath expression of the selected node appears in the XPath Evaluator:

	xPath //A[@class="I"]		~ ~
<u>S</u>	Document	^	
\square	□ ● root		
٤	■… ● A ■… ● A	-	
	● A		
	🖳 🖤 🗶 A	~	\sim

Figure 3 - 32: XPath expression of selected node

The **Document** window shows that the generated XPath matches all A elements of the result lists, which correspond to result links. This XPath can therefore be used as value of the match attribute in our template rule.

- 22 Copy the part of the XPath that will be used as match value: A[@class="l"].
- 23 Click on the results.xsl tab in the **Connector View**.
- 24 Paste it as match attribute value of the pasted template rule in the results.xsl file (think about replacing the " characters by '):



Figure 3 - 33: Pasting the XPath value as match value in XSL file

The element to be processed by the XSL style sheet (result links represented by their XPath expression) has been defined. We will now edit the template rule so that when clicking on a link, the target Web page opens in a new tab. This is done by using:

- the target attribute (added through the <xsl:attribute> element) with the value _blank (new tab);
- the href attribute (added through the <xsl:attribute> element), the value of which is set to the *original* link value (and not to convertigo server and its clipping process) thanks to data extracted by the Web clipper extraction rule and using the <xsl:value-of> element with the attribute select set at "@original_url";
- the <xsl:apply-templates> element used to spread the copying process to



following HTML nodes.



For more information on XSL syntax, see the XSLT tutorial from W3 schools at http://www.w3schools.com/Xsl/

After editing, the template rule is the following:

Figure 3 - 34: Final template rule matching on links

We will now re-launch the transaction and check that, when clicking on a link, the target Web sites open in a new tab with the correct URL address.

To test that the newly created style sheet returns expected results

- 1 Launch a standard Web browser.
- 2 In the URL address field, type in the URL in the following format:

```
http://<HostName>:<ConvertigoPortNumber>/convertigo/projects/
<ProjectName>/index.jsp?__transaction=
```

<TransactionName>

For example, in our project:

- HostName = localhost;
- ConvertigoPortNumber = 18080;
- ProjectName = sample_doc_CWC;
- TransactionName = GoGoogleCom;
- 3 For example, in a browser URL address bar:

http://localhost:18080/convertigo/projects/sample_doc_CWC/index.jsp?__transaction=GoGoogleCom

Figure 3 - 35: Example of URL syntax for calling a transaction

The transaction is executed. Clipped elements appear in the browser as a cliplet:

C Index - Windows	Internet Explorer	
💽 🗸 🗷 http	://localhost:18080/convertigo/projects/sample_doc_CWC/index. 💙 🗲 🗙 Google	P -
🚖 🕸 📈 Index	age 🖓 🔹 🔂 🔹 🖶 Page	🔹 💮 Outils 👻 🎇
	Google Search	ed Search ge Tools
Using MSXML 6	Sintranet local	🔍 100% 🔹 💡

Figure 3 - 36: Cliplet based on Google logo and search form

- 4 Type in a keyword in the search field (for example convertigo).
- 5 Launch the Google search by clicking on the **Google Search** button.

Results are displayed together with the navigation bar:





Figure 3 - 37: Cliplet based on results and navigation bar

6 Click on a link:



Figure 3 - 38: Clicking on results page hypertext link

The target Web site appears in a new tab or a new window (depending on the browser):

Chapter "Presenting Data with Convertigo Web Clipper"

Editing an XSL Style Sheet



Figure 3 - 39: Target Web site displayed in new tab



Chapter "Presenting Data with Convertigo Web Clipper" Editing an XSL Style Sheet



Figure 3 - 40: Target Web site displayed in new window